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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 30th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the Members of JPT Securities Limited (‘Company’) 
will be held on Monday, September 30, 2024 at 14:50 Hours at Kilachand Conference Room, IMC Bldg., IMC Marg, Churchgate, 
Mumbai-400020 to transact the following business:
ORDINARYBUSINESS:
1.	 To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (including the Consolidated Financial Statements) of the Company 

for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
2.	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Chintan Chheda (DIN: 08098371), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 

himself for re-appointment.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
3. 	 Re-appointment of Mr. Chintan Chheda as a Whole Time Director of the Company
	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Ordinary Resolution
	 “Resolved That pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 

(‘Act’) and the rules framed thereunder and other applicable provisions, if any, (including any statutory modification(s) 
or reenactment thereof, for the time being in force) and subject to consents and permission from regulatory authorities 
as may be necessary, consent of the shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded for appointment of  
Mr. Chintan Chheda (DIN: 08098371) as a Whole Time Director (‘WTD’) of the Company for the period of 3 (three) years 
w.e.f. November 13, 2023 and upon the terms and conditions attached to the annexure of notice including remuneration 
with further liberty to the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time to alter the said terms and conditions of 
appointment and remuneration of Mr. Chintan Chheda in the best interests of the Company.

 	 Resolved Further That for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, the Board of Directors of the Company 
be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, 
proper or desirable and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in the said regard.”

4. 	 Appointment of Mrs. Heeral Mandani as an Independent Woman Director of the Company
	 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Ordinary Resolution
	 “Resolved That pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152, 161 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with 
Schedule IV to the Act and other applicable Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Regulations’) as amended from time to time, Mrs. Heeral Mandani, who was appointed as an 
Additional Independent Woman Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from August 13, 2024, and 
whose appointment has been approved by the Board of Directors pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and holds office until the AGM and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for 
independence as provided in the Act and SEBI Regulations and is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Woman Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years i.e. from August 13, 2024 to August 12, 2029.”.

 	 Resolved Further That the Board and/or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, be and are hereby authorised to do 
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Registered Office
SKIL House, 209, Bank Street Cross Lane, 
Fort, Mumbai - 400023
Tel:+91-22-66199000, Fax: +91-22-22696024
CIN: L67120MH1994PLC204636
Website: www.jptsecurities.com
E-mail: company.secretary@jptsecurities.com

By Order of the Board of Directors
For JPT Securities Limited

Chintan Chheda
Whole Time Director

DIN: 08098371

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 30, 2024
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NOTES:
1.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), relating to special business to be 

transacted at the 30th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) ,and the details, as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Regulations’) and Secretarial Standards by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India, of person seeking appointment/reappointment as Director as per the exhibit to 
notice, is annexed thereto.

2.	 PROXIES
a.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint one or more proxy (ies) to attend and 

vote instead of himself/herself and the proxy(ies) so appointed need not be a member of the company. Proxy 
(ies) in order to be effective, must be received at the company’s registered office not less than 48 hours before 
the commencement of the meeting. Only duly completed, signed and stamped proxy will be considered valid. 
A proxy form is attached herewith.

b.	 A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten 
percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case of a Member who is holding more than 
ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, he/she may appoint a single personas 
proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or Member. The instrument appointing a proxy 
shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing, or if the appointer is a company, society, 
partnership firm, etc., it shall be supported by appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable, issued on behalf of the 
nominating organization. The Proxy-holder shall prove his identity at the time of attending the Meeting.

c.	 Every member shall be entitled during the period beginning twenty-four hours before the time fixed for the commencement 
of the AGM and ending with conclusion of the AGM, to inspect at the Registered Office of the Company the proxies 
lodged, at any time between 10:00 hours and 18:00 hours, in terms of SS-2, provided not less than three days’ notice 
in writing of the intention so to inspect is given to the Company.

3.	 Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the AGM are requested to send a certified 
copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote in their behalf at the AGM.

4.	 In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to 
vote.

5.	 Members/ Proxies/ Representatives are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Reports along with their duly filled in 
Attendance Slips attached herewith for attending the AGM.

6.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Tuesday, September 24, 
2024 to Monday, September 30, 2024, both days inclusive, for the purpose of the AGM of the Company.

7.	 The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding and the Register of Contracts or 
Arrangements, maintained under Section 170 and Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 respectively will be available 
for inspection by the Members at the AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to company.
secretary@jptsecurities.com.

8.	 Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the Financial Statements of the Company are requested to write 
their queries to the Company at least seven working days in advance of the AGM so that the information required can be 
made readily available at the AGM.

9.	 The Members are requested to approach the Company for consolidation of folios, if shareholdings are under multiple 
folios. Members are requested to a quote the Ledger Folio or Client ID and DP ID Numbers in all communications with the 
Company/RTA.

10.	 Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail address with 
Company’s RTA at info@masserv.com so that they can receive the Annual Report and other communication from the 
Company in electronic form. Kindly note that even after registering for e-communication, Members are entitled to receive 
such communication in physical form by permitted mode, free of cost, upon making a request for the same. For any 
such communication, the Members may also send requests to the Company’s investor email id: company.secretary@
jptsecurities.com

11.	 Copies of the Annual Report for FY 2023-24 including therein the Notice of the 30th AGM, which, inter alia, indicates the 
process and manner of e-voting; Attendance Slip and Proxy Forms are being sent in electronic mode to those Members 
whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s) (‘DPs’) for communication purposes 
unless any Member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For Members who have not registered their e-mail 
addresses, physical copies of the Annual Report, etc., are being sent by the permitted mode. The Annual Report are being 



3

30th Annual Report
sent to the Members, as ibid, whose names shall appear in the Register of Members or in case of shares held in electronic 
form, who were the beneficial owners as on Friday, August 30, 2024. However, if such a person is not a Member on the cut-
off date of Monday, September 23, 2024; such person shall not be eligible to vote via remote e-voting or at AGM and may 
treat this Notice for information purpose only. Members may also note that the Annual Report of the Company is available 
for download from the website of the Company i.e. www.jptsecurities.com

12.	 All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company 
between 11:00 hours to 13:00 hours on all working days, except Saturdays, upto the date of the AGM. Copies thereof shall 
also be made available for inspection at the Meeting.

13.	 In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder (including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), SS-2 and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
And Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide e-voting facility to all Members of 
the Company to enable them to cast their votes electronically on the items/resolutions mentioned in this Notice. The facility 
of casting the votes by the Members using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (‘remote 
e-voting’) will be provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (‘CSDL’). The facility for voting through ballot paper 
shall be made available at the AGM and the Members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting 
shall be able to exercise their right at the Meeting through ballot paper. The Members who have cast their vote by remote 
e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

14.	 The brief profile of the Directors seeking re-appointment including relevant particulars relating to them is furnished as a 
part of the Notice as Annexure and in Explanatory Statement, as required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

15.	 As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for the members in respect 
of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by 
submitting Form No. SH-13. Members are requested to submit the said details to their Depository Participants in case the 
shares are held by them in electronic form and to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) in case the shares 
are held by them in physical form.

16.	 In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM 
has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.jptsecurities.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the 
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the same is also available on the website of 
CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

17.	 To facilitate other shareholders whose email id are not registered, to receive this notice electronically and cast their vote 
electronically, special arrangement has been made with its RTA for registration of email addresses in terms of the General 
Circular No.17/2020&20/2020 issued by MCA dated April 13, 2020 & May 05, 2020 respectively. The process for registration 
of email addresses is as under: Pursuant to the aforesaid Circular issued by MCA, shareholders who have not registered 
their email address may contact Company’s RTA, MAS Services Limited at info@masserv.com and also to Company at 
company.secretary@jptsecurities.com.

18.	 SEBI vide its notification dated 24 January 2022 has mandated that all requests for transfer of securities including transmission 
and transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialized form. In view of the same and to eliminate all risks 
associated with physical shares and avail various benefits of dematerialization, Members are advised to dematerialize the 
shares held by them in physical form. Members can contact the Company or RTA i.e. MAS Services Limited, for assistance 
in this regard.

19.	 Members should notify the changes in their address immediately to the RTA of the Company/Depository Participants (DP) 
as the case may be. Members who are holding shares in Dematerialized form (Demat) are requested to keep their Bank 
Account details including IFSC and/or MICR updated with their respective DPs (Depository Participant) and those members 
who are holding shares in physical form, by sending a request to the Registrar and Transfer Agent by quoting their Folio No, 
PAN along with cancelled cheque or other acceptable Bank Account proof.

The instructions for remote e-voting are detailed hereunder:-
(i)	 The voting period begins on Friday, September 27, 2024 at 09:00 hours and ends on Sunday, September 29, 2024 at17:00 

hours. During this period, shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, 
as on the cut-off date (record date) of Monday, September 23, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module 
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii)	 The Members should logon to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
(iii)	 Click on Shareholders/Members
(iv)	 Now Enter your User ID:
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a.	 For CDSL:16 digits beneficiary ID,
b.	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
c.	 Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
(v)	 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
(vi)	 If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any 

company, then your existing password is to be used.
(vii)	 If you are a first time user, follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 

shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
•	 Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to 

use the sequence number which is printed on Postal Ballot/Attendance Slip indicated in the PAN field.
Dividend 
Bank Details 
OR Date of 
Birth (DOB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account 
or in the company records in order to login.
•	 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id/folio 

Number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (iv).
(viii) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(ix)	 Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members holding 

shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential.

(x)	 For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this 
Notice.

(xi)	 Click on the Electronic Voting Sequence Number (EVSN: 240822005) of JPT Securities Limited.
(xii)	 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same, the option “YES/NO” for voting. 

Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies 
that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiii)	 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
(xiv)	After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 

wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.
(xv)	 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
(xvi)	You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.
(xvii)	If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed login password, then Enter the User ID and the image verification code 

And click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
(xviii)	Members can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. Them-Voting app 

can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store 
and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on 
your mobile.

(xix)	Note for Non-Individual Members & Custodians:
•	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to logon to www.

evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate.
•	 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.

evoting@cdslindia.com.
•	 After receiving the login details, a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 

Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.
•	 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 

Accounts they would be able to cast their vote.
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•	 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favor of the Custodian, 

If any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
(xx)	 In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and 

e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com. You may also contact Email id: helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com, Phone number: 1800225533

	 In case if a person acquires shares and becomes Member of the Company after dispatch of this Notice/Annual Report, they 
shall follow the procedure stated therein or may obtain the User ID and Password/Sequence Number by sending a request 
to RTA at balmiki@masserv.com.

In case, if the Members have any queries pertaining to the sequence number for e-voting, they may contact the RTA for the 
same. The voting rights of the Members shall be in the proportion to the paid up value of their shares in the equity capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, September 23, 2024.
The Company has appointed Mr. Sandeep Dar (Membership No. FCS 3159), Practicing Company Secretary, Mumbai, as 
Scrutinizer, to scrutinize the remote e-voting process and ballot process at AGM in a fair and transparent manner.
The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at the Meeting and thereafter unblock 
the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall 
make, not later than forty eight hours of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in 
favor or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall counter sign the same. Then Chairman 
or a person authorized by him in writing shall declare the result of the voting forthwith.
The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company www.jptsecurities.
com and on the website of CDSL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in 
writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:-
ITEM NO.3
The Board of Directors of the Company on the basis of recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’) 
appointed Mr. Chintan Chheda, as Key Managerial Personnel under the category of Whole Time Director (‘WTD’) in its meeting 
held on November 08, 2023 with effect from November 13, 2023 for a period of three years starting from November 13, 2023 
to November 12, 2026 on the terms and conditions of remuneration payable in the event of loss or inadequacy of profit and his 
office shall be liable to retire by rotation. As per Schedule V of the Act, his appointment and remuneration requires approval of 
the Members.
Mr. Chintan Chheda satisfies all the Conditions set out under Section 196 (3) of the Act for being eligible for his appointment. He 
is not disqualified from being appointed as Directors in terms of Section 164 of the Act. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Chintan 
Chheda fulfills the conditions specified in Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder.
The brief terms and conditions of his appointment are given below:
a. 	 Monthly Remuneration of Rs. NIL. (inclusive of all perquisites and allowances).
b. 	 Reimbursement of any travelling expenses with respect to office work.
c. 	 The WTD shall have right to manage the day to day affairs of the Company subject to superintendence, guidance, control 

and direction of the Board of Directors of the Company.
d. 	 The WTD shall have right to exercise such powers of management of the Company as may be delegated to him by the 

Board of Directors, from time to time.
e. 	 The WTD shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board and/or any of the Committee(s).
 f. 	 The appointment can be terminated by Mr. Chintan Chheda or the Company, by one party giving to the other 3 (three) 

calendar months’ notice in writing.
ITEM NO. 4
The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee appointed Mrs. Heeral 
Mandani as Additional Independent Director under the category of Woman Director of the Company not liable to retire by rotation 
w.e.f August 13, 2024 for a period of five years pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 read 
with Schedule IV to the Act and other applicable Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Regulations’). Mrs. Heeral Mandani has given her declaration to the Board that she meets the criteria 
of independent Director as provided under Section 149(6) of the Act, is not restrained from acting as a Director by virtue of any 
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Order passed by SEBI or any such authority and is eligible to be appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. 
She has also given her consent to act as a director. In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Heeral Mandani is a person of integrity, 
possesses the relevant expertise / experience and fulfills the conditions specified in the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations 
for appointment as an Independent Woman Director and she is independent of the management. Given her experience, the 
Board considers it desirable and in the interest of the Company to have Mrs. Heeral Mandani on the Board of the Company and 
accordingly the Board recommends the appointment of Mrs. Heeral Mandani as an Independent Woman Director as proposed 
in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 for approval by the Members. The Directors recommend the passing of the Resolution as 
Ordinary Resolution under Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of the Members of the Company.
Brief Profile of Mrs. Heeral Mandani is attached herewith as an Annexure No. II to the Notice. None of the directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel apart from Mrs. Heeral Mandani and their relatives is concerned or interested in the passing of the 
aforesaid resolution.

EXHIBIT TO NOTICE
Annexure I

Name of the Director (DIN) : Mr. Chintan Chheda (Din: 08098371)
Designation : Director
Date of Birth, Age, Nationality : August 29, 1988, 36 years, Indian
Qualification : Bachelor Of Engineering (Information Technology), E-MBA– 

Digital Business Management
Date of First Appointment on the Board : November 13, 2020
Experience/ Brief Profile : Mr. Chintan Chheda is affiliated with E-Commerce and Digital 

Marketing. He has experience in Market Research and 
formulating Business Plans.

Terms and Conditions of appointment/re-appointment : Appointed as a Director liable to retire by rotation and as per 
resolution at Item No. 3 of the Notice.

Number of Board Meetings attended during the financial 
year 2023-2024

: 4 Board Meetings

Remuneration : NIL
Memberships/ Chairmanships of committees (includes 
only Audit Committee/ Investor Grievances Committee/ 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee) of other public 
Companies as on March 31, 2024

;

A) 	 Audit Committee  JPT Securities Limited
 KLG Capital Services Limited

B)	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee  JPT Securities Limited
 KLG Capital Services Limited

C)	 Nomination And Remuneration Committee  KLG Capital Services Limited
Directorships held in other companies as on March 31, 2024 : 1.	 Montana Infrastructure Limited

2.	 Awaita Properties Pvt Ltd
3.	 KLG Stock Brokers Pvt Ltd
4.	 JPT Securities Ltd
5.	 GKK Entertainment Private Limited

Number of shares held in the Company as on March 31, 
2024

: NIL
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Annexure II

Name of the Director : Mrs. Heeral Mandani
Designation : Additional Independent Woman Director
Date of Birth : March 07, 1988
Age : 36 years
Nationality : Indian
Qualification : Chartered Accountant
Date of First Appointment on the Board : August 13, 2024
Experience/ Brief Profile : She is a qualified Chartered Accountant and holds a 

membership with ICAI. She is currently doing her own 
practice and has experience of more than 15 years in field of 
Finance, Consultation among others.

Terms and Conditions of appointment/re-appointment : As per resolution at Item No. 4 of the Notice
Number of Board Meetings attended during the financial year 
2023-24

: NIL

Remuneration : NIL
Memberships/ Chairmanships of committees (includes 
only Audit Committee/ Investor Grievances Committee/ 
Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee) of other public 
Companies as on March 31, 2024

: NIL

Directorships held in other companies as on March 31, 2024 : NIL
Number of shares held in the Company as on March 31, 
2024

: 290 shares

Inter-se relationship with other Directors and KMPs : NIL

Route Map for Venue of the 30th Annual General Meeting

 
Address: Kilachand Conference Room, IMC Bldg., IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai- 400020.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 30th Annual Report of JPT Securities Limited (‘Company’) together with the Audited 
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

Financial Highlights (Standalone)

The financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is summarized below:

(Amount in Rupees)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Total Income  42,08,704 47,78,220
Less: Expenditure 124,34,281 57,87,593
Profit/(Loss) before Depreciation &Tax (82,25,577) (10,09,373)
Less: Depreciation  (1,25,962) (1,41,903)
Profit before Tax (83,51,539) (11,51,276)
Less: Taxes (263) (6700)
Profit after Tax (83,51,276) (11,44,576)
Less: Transfer to Statutory Reserve Account as per Section 45-IC of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

0.00 0.00

Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet (83,51,276) (11,44,576)

Note: Previous year’s figures are regrouped/rearranged, wherever necessary.

Review of Company’s Affairs

Your Company is a Non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company. During the year under review, the Company has earned 
total income of Rs. 42,08,704 as compared to the income of Rs. 47,78,220 during the previous financial year. The loss after tax 
as on March 31, 2024 amounted to Rs. 83,51,276 as against loss of Rs. 11,44,576 during the previous financial year.

Dividend

With a view to conserve resources, your Directors do not recommend dividend for the year under review.

Reserves

During the year under review, no amount has been transferred to Statutory Reserve Account as prescribed by section 45-IC of

The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, being 20% of the profits after taxes for the year.

Extract of Annual Return

The Annual Return in the Form MGT- 7 as required under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is available on the 
website of the Company viz.https://www.jptsecurities.com/investor-desk-annual-report.php

Material Changes and Commitments:

From April 01, 2019 IND-AS is applicable to your Company apart from this there have been no material changes and commitments 
have occurred between the end of financial year of the Company and the date of this report affecting the financial position of the 
Company as at March 31, 2024.

Particulars of Loan, Guarantees and Investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investment covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) 
are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. Also, pursuant to Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Regulations’), the particulars of Loans/Advances given to Subsidiaries have been 
disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

All Related Party Transactions (RPTs) are placed on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and before the Board for 
approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit and the Board is obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseeable and 
repetitive nature. All RPTs entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the Business and on Arm’s Length basis. No 
Material RPTs, entered during the year as per Section 188 of the Act which require approval of the member. The disclosures on 
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RPTs are made in the Notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. Hence, the Company has nothing to report in Form 
AOC-2 and the same is not annexed.

Deposits

During the year under review, the Company had not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

Details of Subsidiaries & Associate Company

During the year under review, the Company has one Associate Company namely JPT Share Services Private Limited (‘JSSPL’). 
Further, BSE through its letter dated March 14, 2024 has intimated regarding the cancellation of stock broker registration of the 
associate company (i.e. JSSPL) due to non-commencement of business and the membership rights are cancelled w.e.f. March 
01, 2024.Also, the Stock Broker License and membership of the associate company with NSE is still ongoing. The performance 
and financial position of JSSPL is provided as a separate statement to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Form AOC-1 in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. V. Ramanan has retired as an Independent Director of the Company due to expiry of his second term of appointment and 
therefore has not offered himself for re-appointment in the company w.e.f. August 12, 2024.

The Board of Directors on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee appointed Mr. Gautam Goswami 
as Additional Independent Director w.e.f August 12, 2024 and Mrs. Heeral Mandani as Additional Independent Woman Director 
of the Company w.e.f August 13, 2024.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Chintan Chheda (DIN: 08098371) retires by rotation 
at ensuing AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Mr. Chintan Chheda is appointed as the Whole Time Director of the Company w.e.f. November 13, 2023 under the category of 
Whole-Time Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

In terms of provisions of Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Chintan Chheda and Mr. Arun Sahu, are the KMP of the 
Company under the category of Whole Time Director and CFO respectively.

Declaration by the Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 that he/she meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 149(6) of the Act and SEBI Regulations.

Independent Director’s Meetings

The Independent Directors, Mr. V. Ramanan and Mr. Rakesh Bajaj met without the attendance of Non- Independent Directors 
and the members of the Management. The Independent Directors, inter alia, reviewed the performance of Non- Independent 
Directors and the Board as a whole and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company 
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Performance Evaluation

The Companies Act, 2013 stipulates the performance Evaluation of the Directors, Board and its Committees. The Company has 
devised the criteria for performance evaluation after approval by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee/Board of Directors 
on the basis of which the annual performance evaluation of the Directors, Board and Board Committees has been carried out.

The criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors are mainly devised based upon the parameter for professional 
conduct, role, functions and duties laid under Schedule IV to the Act. The Evaluation process focused on various aspects of the 
functioning of the Board and its Committees such as composition of the Board and Committees, participation in discussions, 
etc. Performance evaluation of individual Directors was on parameters such as attendance, contribution, constructive and 
active participation etc. The Independent Directors, at their separate Meeting, evaluated the performance of Non- Independent 
Directors and the Board as a whole and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company 
Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The performance 
of all directors was also evaluated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Board of Directors considered the performance evaluation of the Directors, Board and Board Committees. The performance 
evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board excluding the concerned Director being evaluated.



10

30th Annual Report
Directors Responsibility Statement

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) and Section134(5) of the Act, your Directors confirm that:

(a)	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

(b)	 The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 
and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period;

(c)	 The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;

(d)	 The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e)	 The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 
controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

(f)	 The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
Systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Number of Board Meetings

During the Financial Year 2023-24, four meetings of the Board of Directors of the company were held on May 24, 2023, August 
11, 2023, November 08, 2023 and February 14, 2024. The maximum time gap between any two consecutive meetings did not 
exceed one hundred and twenty days. The attendance of each Director at the said Board Meetings is given below:

Name of the Directors No. of Board Meetings Held No. of Board Meetings attended
Mr. Rakesh Bajaj 4 4

Ms. Priyanka Gandhi* 3 1
Mr. V. Ramanan 4 3

Mr. Chintan Chheda 4 4

* Ms. Priyanka Gandhi resigned from the Company w.e.f. November 24, 2023

Audit Committee

As on March 31, 2024, the Audit Committee comprises of Mr. V. Ramanan (Chairman), Mr. Rakesh Bajaj and Mr. Chintan 
Chheda. All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board. The Audit Committee met four 
times during the financial year under review. The meetings of the Committee were held on May 24, 2023, August 11, 2023, 
November 08, 2023 and February14, 2024. The attendance of each Director at the said Committee Meetings is given below:

Name of the Directors No. of Committee Meetings held No. of Committee Meetings Attended
Mr. V. Ramanan 4 3
Mr. Rakesh Bajaj 4 4

Mr. Chintan Chheda 4 4

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

As on March 31, 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Rakesh Bajaj, Mr. V. Ramanan and Ms. 
Priyanka Gandhi as members. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met once during the financial year under review. 
The meeting of the Committee was held on November 08, 2023. The attendance of each director at the said Committee meetings 
is given below:

Name of the Directors No. of Committee Meetings held No. of Committee Meetings Attended
Mr. Rakesh Bajaj 1 1
Mr. V. Ramanan 1 1

Ms. Priyanka Gandhi 1 0
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises of Mr. Chintan Chheda, Mr. V. Ramanan and Mr. Rakesh Bajaj as members. 
As per Regulation 15 of SEBI Regulations the compliance with the Corporate Governance provisions is not applicable to the 
meeting. So, during the financial year 2023-24, no meeting of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee was held.

Statutory Auditors:

M/s. JMT & Associates, Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 29th AGM held 
on September 29, 2023 for a term of three years until the conclusion of the 32nd AGM of the Company. In accordance with the 
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 enforced on May 07, 2018, by the Ministry of the Corporate Affairs, the appointment of 
Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified at every AGM by members and same has been dispensed with. Accordingly, no 
such item has been considered in 30th AGM.

Auditors’ Report

The Auditors’ Report to the Members on the Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, does not 
contain any qualification. The observation in the Auditor’s Report by M/s. JMT & Associates, Chartered Accountants have been 
dealt within the relevant Notes to Accounts, which are self- explanatory.

Internal auditors

M/s. GMKS & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai, have been appointed as Internal Auditors for conducting internal audit of the 
Company. The Internal Auditors independently evaluate the internal controls systems, monitor implementation of the accounting 
systems & procedures and statutory compliances. The Audit Committee periodically reviews the reports of the Internal Auditors.

Secretarial Auditor:

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has appointed M/s. Sandeep Dar & Co., Practicing Company 
Secretary, Mumbai, as its Secretarial Auditors to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The 
Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, is as annexed to this report as Annexure I. As specified in 
the said report, there has been a delay/non-filing of forms due to unavailability of requisite information/technical issue. There are 
observations made by the Secretarial Auditor which is self-explanatory.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under Regulation 34 of SEBI 
Regulations, read with Schedule V of the said Regulations forms part of this Annual Report.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Control with reference to the Financial Statements

The Company has internal control systems, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The Audit 
Committee monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements. The report of the Statutory 
Auditors states about the existence of adequate internal financial control systems and its operating effectiveness. During the 
year, no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed in the internal financial controls.

Managerial Remuneration

Disclosures of the ratios of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration details as required pursuant 
to Section 197(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as Annexure II. None of the Directors of the Company are in 
receipt of any commission from the Company or from any Subsidiary of the Company. The details of remuneration paid to the 
Directors of the Company are given in Extract of Annual Return.

Risk Management Policy

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134 of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Company has already in place a Risk 
Management Policy. The Company has a robust Risk Management framework to safeguard the organization from various risks 
through adequate and timely actions. It is designed to anticipate, evaluate and mitigate risks in order to minimize its impact on 
the business. The elements of risk as identified for the Company are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) 
Report forming part of the Board’s Report.

Significant & Material Orders Passed By the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which would impact the going concern 
Status and company’s operations in future except as otherwise disclosed in this report.
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Nomination & Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Rakesh Bajaj, Mr. V. Ramanan and Priyanka Gandhi as 
Members. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is duly 
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and is annexed to this Report as Annexure III.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has implemented Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy which encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine 
concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. The 
mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of Whistle Blower who avail of such mechanism and also 
provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases.

Sexual Harassment

During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Particulars of Employees

In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the Annual Report and Financial Statements are being sent to the Members of the Company 
and others entitled thereto excluding the information pursuant to Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. If any Member is interested in obtaining a copy thereof, such Member may 
write to the Company in this regard. Upon such request, the information will be made available.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Considering the nature of business of the Company, there are no particulars to be disclosed relating to the Conservation of 
Energy, Research and Development and Technology Absorption as required under the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, for 
the year under review. Further, the Foreign Exchange Earnings during the year under review and the Foreign Exchange Outgo 
is Nil.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the 
Company.

Listing Arrangement

The Company is yet to pay annual listing fee (ALF) to BSE for the financial year 2020-21 onwards. In this matter, company 
along with its promoter received notice from BSE for the payment of ALF and on non-payment of ALF Stock Exchanges shall 
take appropriate action under the applicable statue. Further as per SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/12 dated 
January 22, 2020 specifying standard operating procedure for imposing fines and suspension of trading in case of Non-compliant 
with listing and/or depository regulations. The fines imposed by the BSE are yet to be paid and accordingly the said circular the 
entire shareholding of the promoter(s) in the company has been frozen.

Appreciations and Acknowledgment

The Board of Directors wishes to express its sincere appreciation and thanks to all customers, suppliers, banks, financial 
institutions, solicitors, advisors, Government of India and other regulatory authorities for their consistent support and co-
operation. Your Directors appreciate the contribution made by the employees of the Company and acknowledge their hard work 
and dedication. Your Directors are also deeply grateful to the Members for the confidence and faith that they have always placed 
in the Company.

Registered Office:
SKIL House, 209, Bank Street Cross Lane, Fort, 
Mumbai – 400 023
CIN: L67120MH1994PLC204636
Ph: 022 – 6619 9000 Fax: 022 22696024
Email:company.secretary@jptsecurities.com
Website: www.jptsecurities.com

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 12, 2024

By Order of The Board of Directors of
 For JPT Securities Limited

Rakesh Bajaj 	 Chintan Chheda
Director 		  Director
(DIN: 02894631)	 (DIN: 08098371)
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ANNEXURE I TO THE DIRECTORS’REPORT

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
JPT Securities Limited
[CIN: L67120MH1994PLC204636]
SKIL House, 209, Bank Street Cross Lane, 
Fort Mumbai Maharashtra, India 400023
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by JPT SECURITIES LIMITED [CIN: L67120MH1994PLC204636] (hereinafter called “the Company”). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on March 31, 2024 (hereinafter referred to as “Audit Period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and 
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, according to the provisions of:
(i)	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii)	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii)	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
(iv)	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
(v)	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 

Act’):-
(a)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(c)	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; [Not 

Applicable as the Company has not issued any further share capital during the period under review]
(d) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits & Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

[Not Applicable as there was no reportable event during the period under review]
(e) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 

[Not Applicable as the Company has not issued and listed any debt securities during the financial year under 
review]

(f) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; [Not Applicable as there 
was no reportable event during the period under review]

(h) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; [Not Applicable as there was 
no reportable event during the period under review] and

(i) 	 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
(vi)	 As identified by the management, other laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs and 

compliances of which is relied upon the representation by the management: -
a)	 The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, and Rules and Regulations framed there under to the extent applicable to Non-

Banking Finance Companies.
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b)	 Various Circulars, Notifications, Directions, Guidelines, Master Circulars issued by the Reserve Bank of India from time 

to time to the extent applicable to Non-Banking Financial Companies.
c)	 The Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 and the rules made thereunder.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i)	 Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;
(ii)	 The Listing Agreement entered by the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) read with the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:
(1) Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013and Regulation 6(1) of SEBI (LODR), 2015, the company has not 
appointed a whole-time company secretary and compliance officer. (2) Pursuant to Regulation 14 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015, the Company has not paid the listing fees to BSE for the financial year 2023-24.(3) The Company has not maintained 
structured digital database to handle unpublished price sensitive information pursuant to the provisions of Regulations 5 and 6 of 
the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. (4) Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company is not 
constituted in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013.(5) Pursuant to Section 149(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013,after resignation of Ms. Priyanka Gandhi on November 23, 2023, the company has not appointed a Woman 
Director. (6) The Company has not filed e-forms DPT-3 and BEN-2 with the Registrar of Companies.
We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors except appointment of Woman Director. The changes in the composition of 
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the Meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting.
We further report that based on the review of the Compliance mechanism established by the Company and on the basis of 
Compliance Certificates issued by the Chairman and taken in record by the Board of Directors at their meetings, we are of the 
opinion that there are generally adequate systems & processes in the company commensurate with its size & operation to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, circulars, notifications, directions and guidelines.
During the period under review, decisions were carried out with unanimous approval of the Board and no dissenting views were 
observed, while reviewing the minutes.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations 
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
We further report that during the audit period, the Company has undertaken event / action having a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to below viz.: -
•	 Appointment of M/s GMKS & Co., Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor for FY 2023-24.
•	 Appointment of M/s Sandeep Dar & Co., Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor for FY 2023-24.
•	 Re-appointment of Ms. Priyanka Gandhi, Director liable to retire by rotation pursuant to section 152(6) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 on September 29, 2023.
•	 Resignation of Ms. Priyanka Gandhi as Director w.e.f. November 23, 2023.
•	 Re-appointment of Mr. Chintan Chheda as whole-time director w.e.f. November 13, 2023.
•	 Appointment of M/s. JMT & Associates, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditor to hold office for a term of three (3) 

years.

Date: August 12, 2024
Place: Navi Mumbai

For Sandeep Dar & Co.
Company Secretaries

 Sd/-
Proprietor

FCS: 3159
C.P. No.: 1571

Peer Review Cert. No. 1642/2022
UDIN:F003159F000952021

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
ANNEXURE A
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 ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,
The Members,
JPT Securities Limited
[CIN: L67120MH1994PLC204636]
SKIL House, 209, Bank Street Cross Lane, Fort Mumbai Maharashtra, India 400023

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1. 	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express 

an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. 	 We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and the practices, we followed provided a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.

3. 	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company. The 
Compliance of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect laws have not been reviewed in this Audit since the same 
have been subject to review by Statutory Financial Auditors and Other designated professionals.

4. 	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
and happening of events etc.

5. 	 The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. 	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Date: August 12, 2024
Place: Navi Mumbai

For Sandeep Dar & Co.
Company Secretaries

 Sd/-
Proprietor

FCS: 3159
C.P. No.: 1571

Peer Review Cert. No. 1642/2022
UDIN:F003159F000952021
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ANNEXURE II TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Information pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

i)	 The ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for FY 2023-2024 
is NIL.

ii)	 The percentage increase in the remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in FY 2023-24 is NIL.

iii)	 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employee(s) in the financial year: Not Applicable.

iv)	 The number of permanent employees on the role of the Company: As on March 31, 2024, there were 3 permanent employees 
on the payroll of the Company.

v)	 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: Not Applicable

vi)	 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company: Remuneration paid by the Company 
is as per the Remuneration Policy.
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ANNEXURE III TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

LEGAL FRAMEWORK
This Policy has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors 
of Company in accordance with the requirement of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement, 2015 (‘Listing 
Regulations’) and provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules thereunder.
The Policy is intended to lay down a framework in relation to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”),
Senior Management and other employees.
DEFINITIONS
1.	 “Act” means Companies Act, 2013 & rules made thereunder, including any modifications,clarifications, amendments, 

Circulars or re-enactment thereof.
2.	 “Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company, as constituted from time to time.
3.	 “Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or reconstituted by the 

Board
4.	 “Independent Director” means a director who satisfies the criteria for independence as prescribed under Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’).

5.	 “Key Managerial Personnel” in relation to a company, means—
(i)	 The Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
(ii)	 the Company Secretary;
(iii)	 the Whole-Time Director;
(iv)	 the Chief Financial Officer; and
(v)	 such other officer as may be prescribed;

6.	 “Policy” means this Policy, as may be amended from time to time.
7.	 “Senior Management” shall mean officers / personnel of the Company who are members of its core Management team 

excluding Board of Directors and normally shall comprise all members of Management one level below the Executive 
Directors, including all functional heads.

MEMBERSHIP
i)	 The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 Non-Executive Directors, of which at least fifty percent of the directors shall be 

Independent directors.
ii)	 A minimum of two (2) Members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee Meeting.
iii)	 Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.
CHAIRPERSON
i)	 The Chairperson of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.
ii)	 The Chairperson of the Company (whether executive or non-executive) may be appointed as a Member of the Committee 

but shall not chair the Committee.
iii)	 In the absence of the Chairperson, the Members of the Committee present at the Meeting shall choose one amongst them 

to act as Chairperson.
iv)	 The Chairperson of the Committee or in his absence, any other Member of the Committee authorized by him/her in this 

behalf, shall attend the General Meetings of the Company to answer the shareholders’ queries.
FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS
The Meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.
ROLE/TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE
The role/terms of reference of the Committee include:
i)	 Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend 

To the Board of Directors, a policy relating to the remuneration of the Directors, KMP and other employees;
ii)	 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;
iii)	 Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;
iv)	 Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance 

With the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and removal.
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v)	 Carrying out other functions as may from time to time be required under any statutory, contractual or other regulatory 

requirement.
POLICY FOR APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
I)	 General appointment criteria:

i)	 The Committee shall consider the ethical standards of integrity and probity, qualification, expertise and experience of 
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and accordingly recommend to the Board 
his/ her appointment.

ii)	 The Company should ensure that the person so appointed as Director/Independent Director/KMP/Senior Management 
Personnel does not stand disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder, Listing Regulations or 
any other enactment for the time being in force.

iii)	 The Director/Independent Director/KMP/Senior Management Personnel shall be appointed as per the procedure laid 
down under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder, Listing Regulations or any 
other enactment for the time being in force.

II)	 Other appointment criteria:
	 Enhancing the competency of the Board and attracting as well as retaining talented employees for role of KMP/Senior 

Management Personnel shall be the basis for the Committee to select a candidate for his/her appointment. When 
recommending a candidate for appointment, the Committee shall be:
i)	 Assessing the appointee against a range of criteria which includes but not be limited to qualifications, skills, region 

a land industry experience, background and other qualities required to operate successfully in the position, with due 
regard for the benefits in diversifying the Board;

ii)	 The extent to which the appointee is likely to contribute to the overall effectiveness of the Board, work constructively 
with the existing Directors/KMP/Senior Management Personnel and enhance the efficiency of the Company;

iii)	 The qualification, skills and experience that the appointee brings to the designated role and how an appointee will 
Enhance the skill sets and experience of the Board/Company as a whole;

iv)	 The nature of existing positions held by the appointee including directorships or other relationships and the impact they 
may have on the appointee’s ability to exercise independent judgment;

v)	 The appointment of Independent Directors shall be subject to compliance of provisions of Listing Regulations and 
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with schedule IV and rules thereunder.

III)	 Term/Tenure of appointment of Managing Director/ Whole-Time Director/ Manager and Independent Director:
i)	 Managing Director/Whole-time Director/Manager (Managerial Person):
	 The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managerial Person for a term not exceeding five years at
	 A time. No re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.
	 The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing Director/Whole-time Director/

Manager who is below the age of 21 years or who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the 
person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by 
passing a special resolution based on the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the 
justification for extension of appointment beyond seventy years.

ii)	 Independent Director
a)	 An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of the Company 

and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the Company and disclosure of such 
appointment in the Board’s report.

b)	 No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years each, 
but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become 
an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, 
be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.

c)	 At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number of Boards on which such 
Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent Director and three listed 
companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed 
company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

IV)	 Evaluation
	 The evaluation/assessment of the Directors of the Company is to be conducted on an annual basis as per the requirements 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.



19

30th Annual Report
V)	 Removal
	 Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013 or under any other applicable Act, rules 

and regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of 
a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and 
regulations. The removal shall also be based on principle of natural justice.

VI)	 Retirement
	 The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the Company’s rules and as per applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, wherever applicable.
POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT/OTHER EMPLOYEES
I)	 Remuneration to Directors, KMP and Senior Management:
	 The guiding principle is that the level and composition of remuneration shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain 

And motivate Directors, KMP and Senior Management.
	 The Directors, KMP and other Senior Management’s salary shall be based & determined on the individual person’s 

responsibilities, performance, experience, leadership abilities, initiative taking abilities and knowledge base and also in 
accordance with the limits as prescribed statutorily, if any.

	 The remuneration to Directors, KMP and other Senior Management will be determined by the Committee and recommended 
to the Board for approval. The remuneration shall be subject to the prior/post approval of the shareholders of the Company 
and Central Government, wherever required.

	 While recommending the remuneration, the Committee shall take into account the relevant factors such as market, business 
performance and practices in comparable companies, financial and commercial health of the Company as well as prevai ling 
laws and government/other guidelines.

II)	 Remuneration to Non-executive/Independent Director:
	 The remuneration to Non-executive/Independent Director shall be in accordance with the statutory provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder for the time being in force.
	 The Non-Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board 

or Committee thereof, provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed the maximum amount as provided in the 
Companies Act, 2013, per meeting of the Board or Committee. The Non-Executive/Independent Director may receive 
Commission within the monetary limit approved by shareholders.

	 An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.
III)	 Remuneration to other employees
	 The authority to determine remuneration and terms of appointment of other employees stands delegated to the Managing 

Director/ Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
COMMITTEE MEMBERS’ INTERESTS
i)	 A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is discussed at a Meeting or 

when his or her performance is being evaluated.
ii)	 The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the Meetings of the Committee.
VOTING
i)	 Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of votes of Members present and 

voting and any such decisions hall for all purposes be deemed a decision of the Committee.
ii)	 In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the Meeting will have a casting vote.
DISCLOSURES
As per the Companies Act, 2013 this Policy shall be disclosed in the Board’s Report of the Company.
MISCELLANEOUS
Any terms used in this policy but not defined herein shall have the same meaning as prescribed to it in the Companies Act, 2013 
or Rules made thereunder, or any other relevant legislation/law applicable to the Company.
AMENDMENT
The Board of Directors on its own and/or as per the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee can amend
This Policy, as and when deemed fit.
In case of any subsequent amendment/modification in the Companies Act, 2013 and/or other applicable laws in this regard shall 
Automatically apply to this Policy. 

*****
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Company is Non-Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”) which mainly deals in capital market and financial services. The 
Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking Finance Company, not accepting public deposits under 
Section 45-IA of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited.

The Company was incorporated as Public Limited Company on April 13, 1994, in New Delhi and was taken over by Awaita 
Properties Private Limited in October 2008 in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisitions of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997. The Registered Office of the Company was shifted from New Delhi to 
Mumbai in May 2010.

The Company has Associate Company namely, JPT Share Services Private Limited, which has been admitted as a Deposit 
Based Trading Member of Cash Segment and Equity Derivatives Segment of BSE Limited.

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention, on accrual basis of accounting, and in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and comply with the Accounting Standards notified under Section 133 of 
the Act. The management of JPT Securities Limited has used estimates and judgments relating to the financial statement on a 
prudent and reasonable basis, in order that the financial statement reflect in a true and fair manner, the state of affairs and Loss 
for the year.

The following discussions on our financial condition and result of operations should be read together with our audited consolidated 
financial statement and the notes to these statements included in the Annual Report.

1.	 INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS
	 Strong economic growth in the first quarter of FY23 helped India overcome the UK to become the fifth-largest economy after 

it recovered from the COVID-19 pandemic shock. Nominal GDP or GDP at Current Prices in the year 2023-24 is estimated 
at Rs. 295.36 lakh crores (US$ 3.54 trillion), against the First Revised Estimates (FRE) of GDP for the year 2022-23 of Rs. 
269.50 lakh crores (US$ 3.23 trillion). The growth in nominal GDP during 2023-24 is estimated at 9.6% as compared to 
14.2% in 2022-23. Strong domestic demand for consumption and investment, along with Government’s continued emphasis 
on capital expenditure are seen as among the key driver of the GDP in the second half of FY24. During the period April-June 
2025, India’s exports stood at US$ 109.11 billion, with Engineering Goods (25.35%), Petroleum Products (18.33%) and 
electronic goods (7.73%) being the top three exported commodity. Rising employment and increasing private consumption, 
supported by rising consumer sentiment, will support GDP growth in the coming months.

	 Future capital spending of the government in the economy is expected to be supported by factors such as tax buoyancy, the 
streamlined tax system with low rates, a thorough assessment and rationalisation of the tariff structure, and the digitization 
of tax filing. In the medium run, increased capital spending on infrastructure and asset-building projects is set to increase 
growth multipliers. The contact-based services sector has demonstrated promise to boost growth by unleashing the pent-up 
demand. The sector’s success is being captured by a number of HFIs (High-Frequency Indicators) that are performing well, 
indicating the beginnings of a comeback.

	 India has emerged as the fastest-growing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top three economic 
powers in the world over the next 10-15 years, backed by its robust democracy and strong partnerships.

	 India’s appeal as a destination for investments has grown stronger and more sustainable because of the current period of 
global unpredictability and volatility, and the record amounts of money raised by India-focused funds in 2022 are evidence 
of investor faith in the “Invest in India” narrative.

	 Real GDP or GDP at Constant (2011-12) Prices in the year 2023-24 is estimated at Rs. 173.82 lakh crores (US$ 2.08 
trillion), against the First Revised Estimates (FRE) of GDP for the year 2022-23 of Rs. 160.71 lakh crores (US$ 1.92 trillion). 
The growth in real GDP during 2023-24 is estimated at 8.2% as compared to 7.0% in 2022-23. There are 113 unicorn 
startups in India, with a combined valuation of over US$ 350 billion. As many as 14 tech startups are expected to list in 2024 
Fintech sector poised to generate the largest number of future unicorns in India. With India presently has the third-largest 
unicorn base in the world. The government is also focusing on renewable sources by achieving 40% of its energy from 
non-fossil sources by 2030. India is committed to achieving the country’s ambition of Net Zero Emissions by 2070 through 
a five-pronged strategy, ‘Panchamrit’. Moreover, India ranked 3rd in the renewable energy country attractive index.

	 According to the McKinsey Global Institute, India needs to boost its rate of employment growth and create 90 million non-
farm jobs between 2023 to 2030 in order to increase productivity and economic growth. The net employment rate needs 
to grow by 1.5% per annum from 2023 to 2030 to achieve 8-8.5% GDP growth between same time periods. India’s current 
account deficit (CAD) narrowed to 0.7% of GDP in FY24. The CAD stood at US$ 23.2 billion for the 2023-24 compared to 
US$ 67.0 billion or 2.0% of GDP in the preceding year. This was largely due to decrease in merchandise trade deficit.
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	 Exports fared remarkably well during the pandemic and aided recovery when all other growth engines were losing steam in 

terms of their contribution to GDP. Going forward, the contribution of merchandise exports may waver as several of India’s 
trade partners witness an economic slowdown. According to Minister of Commerce and Industry, Consumer Affairs, Food 
and Public Distribution and Textiles Mr. Piyush Goyal, Indian exports are expected to reach US$ 1 trillion by 2030.

	 Recent Developments
	 India is primarily a domestic demand-driven economy, with consumption and investments contributing to 70% of the economic 

activity. With an improvement in the economic scenario and the Indian economy recovering from the Covid-19 pandemic 
shock, several investments and developments have been made across various sectors of the economy. According to World 
Bank, India must continue to prioritise lowering inequality while also putting growth-oriented policies into place to boost the 
economy. In view of this, there have been some developments that have taken place in the recent past. Some of them are 
mentioned below.

i.	 As of July 5, 2024, India’s foreign exchange reserves stood at US$ 657.15 billion.

ii.	 In May 2024, India saw a total of US$ 6.9 billion in PE-VC investments.

iii.	 Merchandise exports in June 2024 stood at US$ 35.20 billion, with total merchandise exports of US$ 109.96 billion 
during the period of April 2024 to June 2024.

iv.	 In June 2024, the gross Goods and Services Tax (GST) stood at highest monthly revenue collection at Rs. 1.74 lakh 
crore (US$ 20.83 billion) vs Rs. 1.73 lakh crore (US$ 20.71 billion)

v.	 Between April 2000–March 2024, cumulative FDI equity inflows to India stood at US$ 97 billion

vi.	 In May 2024, the overall IIP (Index of Industrial Production) stood at 154.2. The Indices of Industrial Production for the 
mining, manufacturing and electricity sectors stood at 136.5, 149.7 and 229.3, respectively, in May 2024.

vii.	 According to data released by the Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation (MoSPI), India’s Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) based retail inflation reached 5.08% (Provisional) for June 2024.

viii.	 Foreign Institutional Investors (FII) inflows between April-July (2023-24) were close to Rs. 80,500 crore (US$ 9.67 
billion), while Domestic Institutional Investors (DII) sold Rs. 4,500 crore (US$ 540.56 million) in the same period. As per 
depository data, Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs) invested (US$ 13.89 billion) in India during January- (up to 15th July) 
2024.

ix.	 The wheat procurement during Rabi Marketing Season (RMS) 2024-25 (till May) was estimated to be 266 lakh metric 
tonnes (LMT) and the rice procured in Kharif Marketing Season (KMS) 2024-25 was 400 LMT.

	 Government Initiatives
	 Over the years, the Indian government has introduced many initiatives to strengthen the nation’s economy. The Indian 

government has been effective in developing policies and programmes that are not only beneficial for citizens to improve 
their financial stability but also for the overall growth of the economy. Over recent decades, India’s rapid economic growth 
has led to a substantial increase in its demand for exports. Besides this, a number of the government’s flagship programmes, 
including Make in India, Start-up India, Digital India, the Smart City Mission, and the Atal Mission for Rejuvenation and 
Urban Transformation, is aimed at creating immense opportunities in India. In this regard, some of the initiatives taken by 
the government to improve the economic condition of the country are mentioned below:

i.	 In February 2024, the Finance Ministry announced the total expenditure in Interim 2024-25 estimated at Rs. 47,65,768 
crore (US$ 571.64 billion) of which total capital expenditure is Rs. 11,11,111 crore (US$ 133.27 billion).

ii.	 On January 22, 2024, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi announced the ‘Pradhan Mantri Suryodaya Yojana’. Under 
this scheme, 1 crore households will receive rooftop solar installations.

iii.	 On September 17, 2023, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Central Sector Scheme PM-VISHWAKARMA 
in New Delhi. The new scheme aims to provide recognition and comprehensive support to traditional artisans & 
craftsmen who work with their hands and basic tools. This initiative is designed to enhance the quality, scale, and 
reach of their products, as well as to integrate them with MSME value chains.

iv.	 On August 6, 2023, Amrit Bharat Station Scheme was launched to transform and revitalize 1309 railway stations 
across the nation. This scheme envisages development of stations on a continuous basis with a long-term vision.

v.	 On June 28, 2023, the Ministry of Environment, Forests, and Climate Change introduced the ‘Draft Carbon Credit 
Trading Scheme, 2023’.
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vi.	 From April 1, 2023, Foreign Trade Policy 2023 was unveiled to create an enabling ecosystem to support the philosophy 

of ‘Aatmanirbhar Bharat’ and ‘Local goes Global’.

vii.	 To enhance India’s manufacturing capabilities by increasing investment and production in the sector, the government 
of India has introduced the Production Linked Incentive Scheme (PLI) for Pharmaceuticals.

viii.	 Prime Minister Mr Narendra Modi has inaugurated a new food security scheme for providing free food grains to 
Antyodaya Ann Yojna (AAY) & Primary Household (PHH) beneficiaries, called Pradhan Mantri Garib Kalyan Ann 
Yojana (PMGKAY) from January 1, 2023.

ix.	 Under PM GatiShakti Master Plan, the National Highway Network will develop 25,000 km of new highways network, 
which will be worth Rs. 20,000 crore (US$ 2.67 billion).

x.	 Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman allocated Rs. 650 crore (US$ 86.69 million) for the 
Deep Ocean mission that seeks to explore vast marine living and non-living resources. Department of Space (DoS) 
has got Rs. 13,700 crore (US$ 1.83 billion) in 2022-23 for several key space missions like Gaganyaan, Chandrayaan-3, 
and Aditya L-1 (sun).

xi.	 Numerous foreign companies are setting up their facilities in India on account of various Government initiatives like 
Make in India and Digital India. Prime Minister of India Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Make in India initiative with an 
aim to boost the country’s manufacturing sector and increase the purchasing power of the average Indian consumer, 
which would further drive demand and spur development, thus benefiting investors. The Government of India, under 
its Make in India initiative, is trying to boost the contribution made by the manufacturing sector with an aim to take it to 
25% of the GDP from the current 17%. Besides, the government has also come up with the Digital India initiative, which 
focuses on three core components: the creation of digital infrastructure, delivering services digitally, and increasing 
digital literacy.

xii.	 National Bank for Financing Infrastructure and Development (NaBFID) is a bank that will provide non-recourse 
infrastructure financing and is expected to support projects from the first quarter of FY23; it is expected to raise Rs. 4 
trillion (US$ 53.58 billion) in the next three years.

xiii.	 The Government of India is expected to increase public health spending to 2.5% of the GDP by 2025.

2.	 OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS
	 Opportunities

•	 Low retail penetration of financial services / products in India

•	 Extensive distribution reach and strong brand recognition

•	 Opening of financial sector in India along with introduction of innovative products

•	 Opportunity to cross sell services

•	 Increasing per-capita GDP

•	 Changing demographic profile of the country in favour of the young

Threats
•	 Inflationary pressures, slowdown in policy making and reduction in household savings in financial products

•	 Competition from local and multinational players

•	 Execution risk

•	 Regulatory changes

•	 Attraction and retention of human capital

3.	 SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE
	 The Company operates in single segment.

4.	 FUTURE PROSPECTS & OUTLOOK
	 In the forthcoming year, the Company envisages to identify new avenues of business activities and make use of opportunities 

available, besides strengthening its present operations.
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5.	 RISK AND CONCERNS
	 General risks associated with the financial services sector in the normal course of business that we are in, apply to the 

Company also.

6.	 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
	 The Company has adequate internal controls commensurate with its size and nature of operations. Besides, the Audit 

Committee reviews the internal controls in co-ordination with the Auditors.

7.	 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
a)	 Share Capital: As on March 31, 2024, the Company’s issued and subscribed share capital consists of Equity Share 

Capital only. The paid-up Share Capital of Company as at March 31, 2024, stood at Rs. 300.60 Lacs comprising of 
30,06,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (previous year Rs. 300.60 Lacs).

b)	 Reserves and Surplus: During the year under review, the Reserves and Surplus stood at Rs. 52.44 Lacs (previous year 
Rs. 135.95 Lacs).

c)	 Financial Result: During the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has earned total income of Rs. 42.08 Lacs as 
compared to the income of Rs. 47.78 Lacs during the previous financial year. The Loss after tax as on March 31, 2024 
amounted to Rs. 83.51 Lacs as against loss of Rs. 11.44 Lacs during the previous financial year.

8.	 HUMAN RESOURCE
	 Human resource management is an important function in the Company. The Company’s aim is to create a working 

environment that attracts, motivate and retains the best people.

9.	 KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS ARE AS UNDER: -

Sr. No. Particulars as on 31.03.2024 as on 31.03.2023
1 Current Ratio 8.86 17.29
2 Debt-Equity Ratio NA NA
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio NA NA
4 Return on Equity Ratio (0.24) (0.03)
5 Inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA
6 Trade Receivable turnover ratio NA NA
7 Trade payables turnover Ratio NA NA
8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio 0.12 0.11
9 Net Profit Ratio (1.98) (0.24)

10 Return on Capital employed (0.24) (0.03)
11 Return on Investment (2.82) (0.14)

10.	 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
	 The Company has in place mechanism to inform Board Members about the risk assessment and minimization procedures 

and ensure that risk is controlled through the means of a properly defined framework.

11.	 CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
	 Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company’s objectives, expectations or 

predictions may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities, laws and regulations. Actual results may 
differ materially from those expressed in the statement. The important factors that could influence the Company’s operations 
include change in government regulations, tax laws, economic developments, litigations, etc.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of JPT Securities Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of JPT Securities Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred toas“the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind 
AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit/loss and total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

During the audit it is observed that the Company is facing liquidity issues due to which the Company has not settled statutory 
dues amounting to Rs. 2.85 crores outstanding for more than six months. Further the Company is handling these pending income 
tax cases against which actual liability with interest thereon due up to the balance sheet date is not assessed / determined hence 
the additional tax liabilities if any along with interest under income tax have not been provided in books. As per management 
representation the Company is facing temporary liquidity issue which will be resolved soon as all the loans, advances are good 
and recoverable in full and there no issue on going concern of the Company. There is no provision is required in the books which 
impacts financial results and financial position of the Company as on balance sheet date.

In view of inadequate information and status of tax dues, adequacy of statutory liability is not quantifiable as on balance sheet 
date.

Our report is not modified to the extent in these matters.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), 
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Standalone 
Ind AS Financial Statements of the current year. we have determined that there are no Key Matters to Communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this 
auditor’s report is other information included in Board of Directors Report including Annexure to such report but does not include 
the Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, 
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind 
AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In 
preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind As financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control;

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results 
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We

describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure -A” a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024, taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2024 from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with reference to 
these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure B”.

g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended; we would like to state that the remuneration which is paid by the Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

i.	 The Company does not have any pending litigations except as reported which would impact its financial position 
in its Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements ;

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses; and

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company
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iv.	 (a) 	 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in 

note to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

	 (b) 	 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note to the 
accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

	 (c) 	 Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement.

v.	 The Company has not declared any Dividend during the year ended 31 March, 2024, nor has it proposed any 
Dividend for the year subject to approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the 
provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply.

vi.	 Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an accounting software for 
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and as explained 
to us the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, 
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE 
For J M T & ASSOCIATES,

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Reg. No:. 104167W)

(SANJAY PICHHOLIA) 
PARTNER

PLACE: Mumbai		  Membership No.122651
DATE: 29.05.2024 	  	 UDIN: 24122651BKBGIS2774



28

30th Annual Report
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of JPT SECURITIES LIMITED (“the Company”) for the year Ended 
on 31st March, 024. We report that:

i.	 (a) 	 (A) 	 The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
fixed assets.

		  (B) 	 There are no intangible assets owned by the company hence this clause is not applicable.

	 (b)	 All the fixed assets has been physically verified by the management during the year which in our opinion is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the company and nature of its fixed assets and no material discrepancies were noticed on 
such physical verification.

	 (c)	 The Company does not hold any immovable property; hence clause (c) is not applicable.

	 (d)	 The company has not revalued any of his property, Plant & Equipment during the year

	 (e)	 No Proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31st 024 for 
holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) act 1988 (as amended in 2016)and the rules 
made thereunder.

ii.	 The Company doesn’t have any inventory; hence this clause is Not Applicable.

iii.	 During the year The company has not made any fresh investment or provided any guarantee or security or granted any 
Loans and advances in the nature of Loans secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or any 
other entity

(a)	 Regarding Outstanding Loans or advances in the nature of Loans this clause is not applicable as Principle business of 
the company is of giving Loans

(b)	 The Investments made, guarantee provided, security given and Terms & Conditions of Giving all Loans and advances 
in nature of Loan and guarantee provided in our opinion are prime facie not pre judicial to the interest of the company

(c)	 (c), (d) & (e) Since the Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans are repayable on demand and there is not stipulation 
regarding terms or period of repayment the clause (c), (d), &(e) are not applicable

(f) 	 There are total loans of Rs. 6,00,00,000/- which are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment , aggregate amount of Loans Rs. 6,00,00,000/- and which is 100% of Total Loans Granted and there are no 
amount of loan granted to promoters , related parties as defined in clause (76) of Section 2 of Companies act 2013

iv.	 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, guarantees, 
and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and 
hence not commented upon.

v.	 According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any public deposits, and hence the 
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of 
the Companies Act and the rules framed there under are not applicable for the year under audit.

vi.	 We have been informed by the management that the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records 
for the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the provision of clause (vi) of 
para 3 is not applicable.

vii.	 (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
opinion, the company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
income-tax, sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess, GST and other material statutory dues 
applicable with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at 31st March 024, for the period of more than 
six months from the date becoming payable except Income tax Payable of Rs. 2,85,12,788/-, GST Payable 10,800/- 
TDS payable of Rs. 30,877/-, Professional Tax of Rs. 5,400/-.

	 (b)	 According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues of Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, 
Sales Tax, Customs Duty, Excess Duty, VAT and cess on account of any dispute which have not been deposited except 
an Income Tax Liability of Rs. 1,02,95,910/- for A.Y. 2012-13 is pending with C.I.T., New Delhi and tax demands on 
account of interest or penalties were not quantifiable for the reason mentioned in emphasis of matters.
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viii.	 There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income in tax

	 Assessments under the income tax act 1961 during the year

ix.	 (a) 	 The Company has defaulted in repayment of Installment of Car Loan

	 (b)	 The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any Bank or Financial Institution or other lender

	 (c)	 The Company has not taken any Term Loan during the year & there are no unutilized term loan at the beginning of the 
year and hence reporting under clause ix.(c) is not applicable

	 (d)	 On overall examination of the financial statement of the company funds raised on short term basis have prime facie not 
been used during the year for long term purposes of the company

	 (e)	 On Overall examination of the financial statements of the company, the company has not taken any funds from any 
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of his associate company. The Company did not have any 
subsidiary or Joint venture during the year.

	 (f)	 Company has not raised any Loan during the year on the pledge of security of its associate company hence reporting 
under clause ix. (f) Of the Order is not applicable

x.	 (a) 	 In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any money 
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including Debt Instruments) during the year. Therefor provision of 
Clause x(a) of order is not applicable

	 (b)	 During the year Company has not made any preferential allotment or Private placement of shares or convertible 
debenture (fully/Partly/optionally) and hence reporting under Clause (b) is not applicable to the company

xi.	 (a) 	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company carried out in accordance with the 
generally accepted Auditing practices in India and according to the information and explanations given to us they have 
neither come across any instance of material fraud on or by the Company noticed or reported during the year, nor have 
been informed of such case by the Management

	 (b)	 To the bet of our knowledge no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been 
filed in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the central 
Government during the year and up to the date of this Report

	 (c)	 There are no whistle blower Complaints received by the company during the year and upto the date of the report

xii.	 The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore the Reporting under clause (xii) (a), (b) and (c) of the order is not applicable.

xiii.	 In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in 
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the 
financial statements etc, as required by the applicable accounting standard.

xiv.	 (a) 	 In Our Opinion the company has adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business

	 (b)	 Since the Company is a Small Company, the internal Audit work is assigned to separate officer of the company, its 
internal Audit report for the audit period is considered by us.

xv.	 In our Opinion the company during the year the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with any of its 
directors or directors of its Holding Company , Subsidiary company , associate Company or persons connected with such 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of Companies Act is not applicable to Company

xvi.	 (a)	  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is required to be registered 
under section 45-IA of The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and it has obtained certificate of registration.

	 (b)	 Since the company has valid certificate of registration (COR) from Reserve Bank of India as per The Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clause (b) is not applicable

	 (c)	 A Company is not a core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Regulation of Reserve Bank of India so it does not 
required to register as CIC

	 (d)	 The Group does not have more than one CIC accordingly reporting under Clause XVI.(d) is not applicable

xvii.	 The Company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 29,44,080/- in current financial year and also incurred Cash loss of Rs. 
8,06,078/- in the preceding financial year.
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xviii.	There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor of the company during the year.

xix.	 On the basis of Financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of Realization of Financial Assets & Payment of Financial Liabilities, 
other information accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of board of directors and Managements plans 
and based on our examination of evidence supporting the assumption nothing has come to our attention which cause us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exist as on the date of Audit report indicating that company is not capable of meeting 
its liabilities existing as on the date of Balance sheet

xx.	 The Provision of Section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company during the year and hence 
reporting under this clause is not applicable

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE 
For J M T & ASSOCIATES,

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Reg. No:. 104167W)

(SANJAY PICHHOLIA) 
PARTNER

PLACE: Mumbai		  Membership No.122651
DATE: 29.05.2024 	  	 UDIN: 24122651BKBGIS2774

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of JPT SECURITIES LIMITED (“the Company”) for the year Ended 
on 31st March, 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of JPT SECURITIES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st 
March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference 
to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls and as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 



31

30th Annual Report
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone 
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements includes those policies 
and procedures that:

(1)	 Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the company;

(2)	 Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3)	 Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting reference to these Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial reporting reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
reference to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting reference 
to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India.

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE 
For J M T & ASSOCIATES,

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Reg. No:. 104167W)

(SANJAY PICHHOLIA) 
PARTNER

PLACE: Mumbai		  Membership No.122651
DATE: 29.05.2024 	  	 UDIN: 24122651BKBGIS2774



32

30th Annual Report
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

Amount in Rs

 Particulars  Note  As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023
I ASSETS
 (1) Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalants 2  15,91,902  15,96,574
Investment 3  29,65,900  82,47,397
Other Financial Assets 4  6,71,56,809  6,64,86,554

 7,17,14,611  7,63,30,525
 (2) Non Financial Assets

Property, plant and Equipments 5  2,52,059  3,12,413
Deferred Tax Assets 6  90,135  89,872

 TOTAL  7,20,56,805  7,67,32,810
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 (1) LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 7  56,46,175  26,16,508
Other Financial Liabilities 8  24,43,928  17,98,324

 80,90,103  44,14,832
 (2) Non Financial Liabilities  -

Current Tax 9  2,85,12,788  2,85,12,788
Provisions 10  1,50,000  1,50,000

 (3) EQUITY  2,86,62,788  2,86,62,788
Equity Share Capital 11  3,00,60,000  3,00,60,000
Other Equity 12  52,43,914  1,35,95,190

 3,53,03,914  4,36,55,190
 TOTAL  7,20,56,805  7,67,32,810

Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Financial Statements 2-26  -  -

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu

Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Amount in Rs

 Particulars  Note For the period ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

REVENUE
Revenue from Operations  13  42,08,645  47,34,381
Other Income  14  59  43,839
Total Revenue  42,08,704  47,78,220

EXPENSES
Employee Benefits Expenses  15  15,39,600  16,09,292
Finance Costs  16  19,399  42,933
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  5  1,25,962  1,41,903
Other Expenses  17  62,08,236  41,35,368
Expected Credit loss  25  46,67,046  -
Total Expenses  1,25,60,243  59,29,496

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax  (83,51,539)  (11,51,276)
Tax Expense - Current Tax  -  -
- 	 MAT credit entitlement  -  -
- 	 Deferred Tax  (263)  (6,700)
- 	 Income tax for earlier years  -  -
Profit (Loss) After Tax  (83,51,276)  (11,44,576)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other Comprehensive Income to be reclassified to profit and 
loss in subsequent year

 -  -

Other Comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit 
and loss in subsequent year

Acturial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans  -  -
Income Tax effect  -  -

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -  -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  (83,51,276)  (11,44,576)
Earnings per Equity share of Rs. 10/- each  24
- 	 Basic (In Rupees)  (2.78)  (0.38)
- 	 Diluted (In Rupees)  (2.78)  (0.38)
Significant Accounting Policies  1
Notes on Financial Statements  2-26

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu
Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Amount in Rs
 Sr. 
No.

 Particulars For the period ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

A Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit / (Loss) before Tax  (83,51,539)  (11,51,276)
Adjustments for :-

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  1,25,962  1,41,903
Dividend  (59)  (89)
Fair Valuation of Investment  (2,191)  2,03,295
Investment Written off  6,16,642  -
Finance Costs  19,399  42,933
Provision for Impariment
Contingent Provision against Standard assets  46,67,046  

Operating profit before working capital changes  (29,24,740)  (7,63,234)
Adjusted for

Inventories  -  -
Trade and Other Receivables  14,55,710  4,38,000
Trade and Other Payables  6,45,604  4,68,597

Cash Generated from Operations  (8,23,426)  1,43,363
Direct Taxes (Paid) / Refund  -  -

Net Cash from/(used in) Operating Activities  (8,23,426)  1,43,363
B Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets and Capital Work in Progress  (65,608)  -
Inter Corporate Deposit  -  1,75,00,000
Interest Receivables  (21,25,906)  (10,35,616)

Net Cash used in Investing Activities  (21,91,514)  1,64,64,384
C Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  (2,50,649)  (2,27,114)
Short Term Borrowings (Net)  32,80,316  (1,65,43,116)
Interest Paid  (19,399)  (42,933)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities  30,10,268  (1,68,13,163)
Net (decrease) / increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (4,672)  (2,05,416)
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Opening balance  15,96,574  18,01,990
Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing balance  15,91,902  15,96,574

Notes:
(1) 	 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “indirect method” as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement on Cash 

flows.
(2) 	 Figures in brackets indicate outflow.
(3) 	 Previous Year figures have been regrouped / rearranged / recasted wherever necessary to make them comparable with 

those of current year.

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu
Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024

 A 	 Equity Share Capital 	 Amount in Rs

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No of Shares Amount No of Shares Amount

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  30,06,000  3,00,60,000  30,06,000  3,00,60,000

Add: Shares Issued during the year  -  -  -  -

Equity shares at the end of the year  30,06,000  3,00,60,000  30,06,000  3,00,60,000

B 	 Other Equity	 Amount in Rs

Particulars General 
Reserve

Stautory 
Reserve

Retained 
Earning

Total

As at April 01, 2023  45,000  1,33,13,913  2,36,277  1,35,95,190
Transfer from retained earnings  -  -  -  -

Profit/(Loss) for the year  (83,51,276)  (83,51,276)

Other Comprehensive Income  -  -  -

As at March 31, 2024  45,000  1,33,13,913  (81,14,999)  52,43,914

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu

Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024

Note - 1

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a	 General Information

	 JPT Securities Limited is a Public Company Listed with BSE and domiciled in India and incorporated under the Provisions 
of Companies Act, 1956. It is registered as a Non banking Financial Company (“NBFC”) with the Reserve Bank of India. 
The registered office of the company is located at SKIL House, 209, Bank Street Cross Lane, Fort Mumbai-400023. The 
Company is engaged in the business of providing Loans.

b	 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

	 These financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, on the accrual basis . the Company has prepared its Financial 
Statements in accordance with Indian GAAP, including accounting standards (AS) notified under the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended), which is considered as “Previous GAAP”.

	 The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29th May , 2024.

c	 Functional and Presentation Currency:

	 The Financial Statements are presented in indian rupees which is the functional currency for the Company.

d	 Use of Estimates:

	 The preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with Ind - AS requires use of estimates and assumptions for some 
items, which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and 
Loss. The actual amounts realised may differ from these estimates. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management becomes 
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Differences between the actual results and estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes 
to the Financial Statements.

	 Estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:

i.	 Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost 
may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013. In cases, where the useful life is different from that prescribed in Schedule II, it is based on technical advice, 
taking into account the nature of the asset, estimated usage and operating conditions of the asset, past history of 
replacement and maintenance support. Assumptions also need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an 
asset may be capitalised and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

ii.	 Recognition of deferred tax assets

	 A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. The management 
assumes that taxable profits will be available while recognising deferred tax assets.

iii.	 Recognition and measurement of other provisions

	 The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow 
of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of 
resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figure included in other provisions.

iv.	 Discounting of long-term financial liabilities

	 All financial liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition. In case of financial liabilities, which 
are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.

f	 Current Versus Non Current Classification:

i.	 The assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet are based on current/ non - current classification. An asset as 
current when it is:

1	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle



37

30th Annual Report
2	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

3	 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

4	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

ii	 A liability is current when it is:

1	 Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

2	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading

3	 Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

4	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 
period

All other liabilities are treated as non - current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

g	 Significant Accounting Policies:

I	 Property, Plant and Equipments:

i.	 All other property, plant and equipments have been carried at value in accordance with the previous GAAP.

ii.	 Property, plant and equipments are stated at cost net of cenvat / value added tax less accumulated depreciation 
and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including finance costs incurred up to the date the asset is ready for its 
intended use.

II	 Depreciation:

i.	 Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets is provided on the Straight Line Method over the useful life of assets 
prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The Management believes that the useful lives 
prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 best represents the period over which management 
expects to use assets.

ii.	 In respect of additions/extensions forming an integral part of existing assets, depreciation has been provided over 
residual life of the respective assets. Significant addittion which are required to be replaced/performed at regular 
interval are depreciated over the useful life of their specific life.

III	 Revenue Recognition:

i	 Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis.

IV	 Financial Instruments:

	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

i	 Classification

	 The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the 
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

ii	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
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iii	 Financial Assets measured at amortised cost:

	 Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose objective 
is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.Such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

iv	 Financial Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

	 Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

v	 Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

	 Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value with all 
changes recognised in profit or loss.

vi	 Investment in Subsidiary and Associates:

	 Investment in equity instruments of Subsidiaries and Associates are measured at cost. Provision for Impairment 
loss on such investment is made only when there is a diminution in value of the investment which is other than 
temporary.

vii	 Investment in Equity Instruments:

	 Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity instruments are 
classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other 
Comprehensive Income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

viii	 Investment in Debt Instruments:

	 A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 
criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included 
with in the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

ix	 Derecognition of Financial Assets

	 A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or 
the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

x	 Impairment of Financial Assets

	 In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instrument and trade receivables.

	 Financial Liabilities

i	 Classification

	 The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, 
shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

ii	 Initial recognition and measurement

	 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

iii	 Subsequent measurement

	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This 
category also includes derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in 



39

30th Annual Report
hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held 
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

iv	 Loans and Borrowings

	 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

v	 Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

V	 Provision for Current and Deferred Tax:

	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to 
the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income.

i.	 Current tax

	 Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and 
any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of the previous years. It is measured using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

>	 has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

>	 intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

ii.	 Deferred Tax

	 Deferred tax is recognized for the future tax consequences of deductable temporary differences between the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases at the reporting date, using the tax rate 
and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognized to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and credits can be utilised.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

>	 entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

>	 deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority.

VI	 Impairment of Assets:

	 At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any property, plant and 
equipment and intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. If any such impairment exists the recoverable 
amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 
to which the asset belongs.

VII	 Provision for Doubtful Debts and Loans and Advances:

	 Provision is made in the accounts for doubtful debts, loans and advances in cases where the management considers 
the debts, loans and advances to be doubtful of recovery.
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VIII	 Provision, Contigent Liabilites and Contigent Assets:

	 A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised 
but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when 
economic inflow is probable.

IX	 Details of Shareholding of Promoters as on 31.3.2024

S. No. Promoter Name No.of Share % of Total Shares % Change during the year
1 Awaita Properties Pvt. Ltd. 1806350  60.09 0

Total 1806350  60.09 0

X	 Details of Trade Payables

	 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31.03.2024

S. No. Particulars Less then 1 
Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More then 3 
Years

Total

1 MSME * 0 0 0 0 0
2 Others 0 0 0 0 0
3 Disputed dues-MSME 0 0 0 0 0
4 Disputed dues-Others 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

	 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31.03.2023

S. 
No.

Particulars Less then 1 
Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More then 3 
Years

Total

1 MSME * 0 0 0 0 0
2 Others 0 0 0 0 0
3 Disputed dues-MSME 0 0 0 0 0
4 Disputed dues-Others 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0

	 *There are no amounts payable to small-scale industrial undertaking as at the balance sheet date. This disclosure is 
basedon the information available with the Company. The Company has not received any intimation from its vendors 
regarding their status under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if 
any, required under the said Act have not been made.

XI	 Details of Trade Receivables

	 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31.03.2024

S. 
No.

Particulars Less then 
6 Months

6 months 
-1 Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More then 
3 Years

Total

1 Undisputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

0 0 0 0 0 0

2 Undisputed Trade receivables - 
considered doubtful

0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

0 0 0 0 0 0

4 Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered doubtful

0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0
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	 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31.03.2023

S. 
No.

Particulars Less then 
6 Months

6 months 
-1 Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More then 
3 Years

Total

1 Undisputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

0 0 0 0 0 0

2 Undisputed Trade receivables - 
considered doubtful

0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

0 0 0 0 0 0

4 Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered doubtful

0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

XII	 Details of title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Compamy:

	 The Company do not have the immovable property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Compamy as on 
31.03.2024. (Previous Year 31.03.2023: Nil).

XIII	 Detials of Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) as on 31.03.2024

	 The Company do not have Capital Work in Progress as on 31.03.2024. (Previous Year 31.03.2023: Nil)

XIV	 Detials of Intangible assets under development as on 31.03.2024:

	 The Company do not have Intangible assets under development in Progress as on 31.03.2024. (Previous Year 
31.03.2023: Nil)

XV	 Details of Benami Property as on 31.03.2024:

	 Company do not have any Benami Property as on 31.03.2024.(previous Year 31.03.2023:NIL)

XVI	 Details of Surrender Income as on 31.03.2023:

	 The Company do not have any transaction not recoreded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the income tax Act,1961 ( Such as Search or survey or 
any other relevant provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961). as on 31.03.2024. ( Previous Year 31.03.2023 : Nil)

XVI	 Ratio Anaalysis

S. No. Particulars as on 31.03.2024 as on 31.03.2023
1 Current Ratio  8.86  17.29
2 Debt- Equity Ratio NA NA
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio NA NA
4 Return on Equity Ratio  (0.24)  (0.03)
5 Inventory turnover Ratio NA NA
6 Trade Receivables turnover Ratio NA NA
7 Trade payables turnover Ratio NA NA
8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio  0.12  0.11
9 Net profit Ratio  (1.98)  (0.24)

10 Return on Capital employed  (0.24)  (0.03)
11 Return on investment  (2.82)  (0.14)
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 Amount in Rs
Particulars As at

March 31, 2024
 As at

March 31, 2023
Note 2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALANTS
Balances with Banks
- In Current Accounts  15,89,842  15,94,514
Cash on Hand  2,060  2,060

 Total  15,91,902  15,96,574
Note 3
INVESTMENT
Long-term Non-Trade Investments
Unquoted: Fully Paid up
In Equity Shares of Associate Company
JPT Share Services Pvt. Ltd  76,00,000  76,00,000
760,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
(P.Y. 760,000 Equity Shares)
Quoted: Fully Paid up
In Equity Shares of other Companies
Neha International Ltd  -  1,01,267
1,40,649 (1,40,649) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
A2Z Infra Engineering Ltd  -  5,15,375
77,500 (P.Y. 77,500) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Current Investment at FVTPL
In Mutual Funds : Unquoted
HDFC Cash Management Plan  -  -
Liquid Bees  32,946  30,755

 Total  76,32,946  82,47,397
Less : Provision for Impairment  46,67,046

 29,65,900  82,47,397
Note 4
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Unsecured & considered good)
Mat Credit entitlement  17,08,000  17,08,000
Dividend declared but not received  148  89
Interest Corporate Depoits  6,00,00,000  6,00,00,000
Interest Receivable  31,61,522  10,35,616
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind for value to

- Related Parties  22,34,739  22,34,739
- Others  52,400  15,08,110

 Total  6,71,56,809  6,64,86,554
Note 5
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Particulars Gross Block Depreciation and Amortisation Net Block
As at

1-Apr-23
Additions 

during
the year

Deductions/ As at
31-Mar-24

Upto
31-Mar-23

For the
year

 Deductions / 
Adjustments

Upto As at As at
Adjustments 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Tangible Assets
Computer  65,608.00  -  65,608  -  28,382  -  28,382  37,226  -
Vechicles 12,60,669  -  - 12,60,669  9,48,256  97,580  -  10,45,836  2,14,833  3,12,413
Total  12,60,669  65,608  - 13,26,277  9,48,256  1,25,962  -  10,74,218  2,52,059  3,12,413
Previous Year  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024
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5.1 In accordance with the Ind-AS 36 on “Impairment of Assets”, the Management during the year carried out an exercise of 
identifying the assets that may have been impaired in respect of each cash generating unit. On the basis of this review carried 
out by the Management, there was no impairment loss on Fixed Assets during the year.

 Amount in Rs
Particulars  As at

March 31, 2024
 As at

March 31, 2023
Note 6
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Deferred Tax Assets on Property, Plant and equipments  90,135  89,872

 Total  90,135  89,872
Note 7
BORROWINGS
Long Term Secured Loan
Vehicle Loan  67,363  3,18,012
Short Term unsecured Loan
From Holding Company  55,78,812  22,98,496

 Total  56,46,175  26,16,508

7.1 Vehicles loan is secured against specific vehicle financed
7.2 Vehicle loan is fully repayable by June 2024.
7.3 Maturity of Vehicle loan; 2022-23: Rs 227114;2023-24: Rs 250649.; 2024-25: Rs 66459.

Note 8
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITES
Statutory Dues  52,042  49,477
Other Payables  23,91,886  17,48,847

 Total  24,43,928  17,98,324
Note 9
CURRENT TAX
Provisions for Income Tax (Net)  2,85,12,788  2,85,12,788

 Total  2,85,12,788  2,85,12,788
Note 10
LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Contingent provision against standard assets  1,50,000  1,50,000

 Total  1,50,000  1,50,000
Note 11
SHARE CAPITAL
Equity Shares
Authorised
4,000,000 (4,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each  4,00,00,000  4,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
30,06,000 (30,06,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (Fully Paid-up)  3,00,60,000  3,00,60,000

 Total  3,00,60,000  3,00,60,000

(a)	 Reconciliation of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

 Particulars  As at March 31, 2024  As at March 31, 2023
 No of Shares  Amount  No of Shares  Amount

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  30,06,000  3,00,60,000  30,06,000  3,00,60,000
Add: Shares Issued during the year  -  -  -  -
Equity shares at the end of the year  30,06,000  3,00,60,000  30,06,000  3,00,60,000

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024
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(b) 	 Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

Shares held by  No. of Shares  % Holding  No. of Shares  % Holding
Awaita Properties Pvt. Ltd.  18,06,350  60.09  18,06,350  60.09

(c) 	 Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of Equity Share having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one 
vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the company, the equity share holders will be entitled to receive any of the 
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportionate to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 Amount in Rs
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2024
 As at 

March 31, 2023
Note 12
Other Equity
General Reserve  45,000  45,000
Stautory Reserve  1,33,13,913  1,33,13,913
Retained Earning

- Balance at beginning of the year  2,36,277  13,80,853
- Transfer from retained earnings  -  -
- Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year  (83,51,276)  (11,44,576)

 (81,14,999)  2,36,277
 Total  52,43,914  1,35,95,190

 Amount in Rs
Particulars For the period ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Note 13
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Interest Income From ICD  42,08,645  47,34,381

 Total  42,08,645  47,34,381
Note 14
OTHER INCOME
Fair Valuation of Current Investment  -  -
Dividend  59  89
Sundry Balance w/back  -  -
Contingent Provision against Standard assets  -  43,750

 Total  59  43,839
Note 15
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages and Allowances  15,39,600  16,09,292

 Total  15,39,600  16,09,292
Note 16
FINANCE COST
Finance Charges for Car Loan  19,399  42,933

 Total  19,399  42,933

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024
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 Amount in Rs
Particulars For the period ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Note 17
OTHER EXPENSES
Advertisement  54,096  37,464
Bank charges  12,475  9,254
Business Promotion Expenses  1,500  -
Payment to Auditors  2,80,250  1,77,000
Car Repair Expenses  -  28,800
Car Insurance  15,165  -
Demat Charges  4,395  10,563
Electricity Expenses  6,11,353  5,19,836
Fee, Taxes & Legal charges  49,934  34,323
Fuel Expenses  3,58,989  3,62,256
Fair Valuation of Current Investment  (2,191)  2,03,295
House Keeping Expenses  1,84,729  1,94,250
Investment Written off  6,16,642  -
Other Administrative Expenses  67,207  51,642
Postage & Courier Charges  -  22,374
Printing & Stationary  72,225  46,885
Professional Fees  2,12,463  1,59,905
ROC Filing Fees  6,110  36,660
Rent Expenses  16,20,000  17,10,000
Sitting Fees to Directors  94,400  94,400
Sundry Balance Written off  14,96,110
Security Services  -  2,03,384
Telephone Expenses  60,644  64,237
Travelling & Conveyance  3,91,740  1,68,840

 Total  62,08,236  41,35,368
Note 18
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
There are no contingent liabilitites during the year.
Note 19
In the opinion of the management, Current Assets, Loans and Advances are of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary course 
of business.
Note 20
SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment Information : The Company is engaged in the business of providing Loans. All other activities of the Company are 
related to the main business. As such there are no separate reportable segments, as per the Ind-AS 108 on Operating Segment
Note 21
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
a)	 List of Related parties

i) 	 Holding Company
	 Awaita Properties Pvt. Ltd
ii) 	 Assocites Company
 	 JPT Share Services Pvt. Ltd.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024
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iii) 	 Key Management Personnel
	 Arun Govinda Sahu ,Chief Financial Officer
	 Chintan Chheda , Director

b)	 Terms and Conditions of transactions with related parties
	 The Transactions from related parties are made on arm’s length price. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured 

and interest have been accounted on market rate except the advances which is merely reimbursment of expenses. This 
assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market 
in which the related party operates.

c)	 Details of transactions with related parties
1	 With Associate Company - JPT Shares Services Private Limited	 Amount in Rs

Nature of Transactions  2023-24  2022-23
Advances
Opening Balance  22,34,739  26,84,739
Paid during the year  (4,50,000)
Closing Balance  22,34,739  22,34,739
Investment in Equity Shares  76,00,000  76,00,000
Short Term Borrowing
Opening Balance  22,98,496  1,88,41,612
Received during the year  54,06,516  52,67,884
Returned during the year  21,26,200  2,18,11,000
Closing Balance  55,78,812  22,98,496
Key Managerial Personnel
Salary of Chief Financial Officer  11,40,000  11,40,000
Salary of Manager  -  -
Salary of Director  -  -
Salary of Company Secretary  -  38,000

Note - 22
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES:
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose 
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The 
Company’s principal financial assets include Investment, loans and advances, trade and other receivables, and cash and bank 
balances that derive directly from its operations.
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the 
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management advises on financial decision and the appropriate financial risk 
governance framework for the Company.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and 
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and 
derivative financial instruments.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to 
a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and advances to 
suppliers) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions 
and other financial instruments.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024
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Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control 
relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment analysis 
is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.
Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance 
with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved authorities. Credit limits of all authorities 
are reviewed by the Management on regular basis.
Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, 
Letter of Credit and working capital limits.
Note - 23
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT:
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other 
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is 
to maximise the shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the 
requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total 
capital plus net debt.
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets 
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. There have 
been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.
Note - 24
EARNING PER SHARE:

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax available for Equity Shareholders (in Rs.)  (83,51,276)  (11,44,576)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each outstanding during the year 3006000  30,06,000
Basic/Diluted Earning Per Share (in Rs.)  (2.78)  (0.38)

Note - 25
Considering the current business scenario globally, on-going litigation, liquidity tightness in the market , the Company has 
undertaken Provision for Impairment of its Assets including Investment / receivables on a conservative basis which includes 
Impairmrnt on Investemnt in Subsideries and Associates , Advance to Parties and Associates, Deposit aggregating to 
Rs.46.67,046/-.
Note - 26
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged/reclassified wherever necessary.

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu
Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of JPT Securities Limited

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of JPT Securities Limited (“the Company”), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary 
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial 
Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind 
AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit/loss and total comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements includes the 
financial information of Associate Company “JPT Share Securities Pvt Ltd. In which Company holds 43% of Equity Capital and 
results of said Associate is consolidated under equity method of accounting.

Emphasis of Matter
During the audit it is observed that the Company is facing liquidity issues due to which the Company has not settled statutory 
dues amounting to Rs. 2.85 crores outstanding for more than six months. Further the Company is handling these pending income 
tax cases against which actual liability with interest thereon due up to the balance sheet date is not assessed / determined hence 
the additional tax liabilities if any along with interest under income tax have not been provided in books. As per management 
representation the Company is facing temporary liquidity issue which will be resolved soon as all the loans, advances are good 
and recoverable in full and there no issue on going concern of the Company. There is no provision is required in the books which 
impacts financial results and financial position of the Company as on balance sheet date.

In view of inadequate information and status of tax dues, adequacy of statutory liability is not quantifiable as on balance sheet 
date.

Our report is not modified to the extent in these matters.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), 
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated 
Ind AS Financial Statements of the current year. we have determined that there are no Key Matters to Communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date of this 
auditor’s report is other information included in Board of Directors Report including Annexure to such report but does not include 
the Consolidated Financial Statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Ind 
AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In 
preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind As financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control;

•	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

•	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.
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•	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. 
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results 
of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters
The annual financial information include the share of profit/loss accounted in consolidated accounts under equity method and 
the associate has incurred losses Rs. 1.21 lakhs and no revenue has been earned during the year. The financial statements of 
associate Company are audited by other independent auditors and we have relied on the same.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books.

c)	 The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account.

d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 
197(16) of the Act, as amended; we would like to state that the remuneration which is paid by the Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

f)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:

i.	 The Company does not have any pending litigations except as reported which would impact its financial position 
in its Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements;

ii.	 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses; and

iii.	 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Company
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iv.	 (a) 	 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in 

note to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

	 (b) 	 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note to the 
accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

	 (c) 	 Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material mis-statement.

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE 
For J M T & ASSOCIATES,

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Reg. No:. 104167W)

(SANJAY PICHHOLIA) 
PARTNER

PLACE: Mumbai     	 Membership No.122651
DATE: 29.05.2024 	 UDIN: 24122651BKBGIT5708
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

 Amount in Rs
 Particulars  Note  As at March 30, 2024  As at March 31, 2023

I ASSETS
 (1) Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalants 2  15,91,902  15,96,574
Investment 3  29,13,624  74,36,568
Other Financial Assets 4  6,71,56,809  6,64,86,554

 7,16,62,335  7,55,19,696
 (2) Non Financial Assets

Property, plant and Equipments 5  2,52,059  3,12,413
Deferred Tax Assets 6  90,135  89,872

 TOTAL  7,20,04,529  7,59,21,981
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 (1) LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 7  56,46,175  26,16,508
Other Financial Liabilities 8  24,43,928  17,98,324

 80,90,103  44,14,832
 (2) Non Financial Liabilities

Current Tax 9  2,85,12,788  2,85,12,788
Provisions 10  1,50,000  1,50,000

 (3) EQUITY  2,86,62,788  2,86,62,788
Equity Share Capital 11  3,00,60,000  3,00,60,000
Other Equity 12  51,91,638  1,27,84,361

 3,52,51,638  4,28,44,361
 TOTAL  7,20,04,529  7,59,21,981

Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Financial Statements 2-26  -  -

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu

Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Amount in Rs
 Particulars  Note  For the period ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
REVENUE

Revenue from Operations 13  42,08,645  47,34,381
Other Income 14  59  43,839

 Total Revenue  42,08,704  47,78,220
EXPENSES

Employee Benefits Expenses 15  15,39,600  16,09,292
Finance Costs 16  19,399  42,933
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 5  1,25,962  1,41,903
Other Expenses 17  62,08,236  41,35,368
Expected Credit loss 25  38,56,217  -

 Total Expenses  1,17,49,414  59,29,496
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax  (75,40,710)  (11,51,276)
Tax Expense - Current Tax  -  -

- MAT credit entitlement  -  -
- Deferred Tax  (263)  (6,700)
- Income tax for earlier years  -  -

Profit (Loss) After Tax  (75,40,447)  (11,44,576)
Share of Profit / (loss) of associates  (52,276)  (59,248)
Net Profit / (Loss) after taxes, minority interest and share of 
profit / (loss) of associates

 (75,92,723)  (12,03,824)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Other Comprehensive Income to be reclassified to profit and 
loss in subsequent year

 -  -

Other Comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit 
and loss in subsequent year

Acturial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans  -  -
Income Tax effect  -  -

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -  -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year  (75,92,723)  (12,03,824)
Earnings per Equity share of Rs. 10/- each 24

- Basic (In Rupees)  (2.53)  (0.40)
- Diluted (In Rupees)  (2.53)  (0.40)

Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes on Financial Statements 2-26

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu
Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

 Amount in Rs

 Sr. 
No.

 Particulars For the period ended 
March 31, 2024

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023

 A  Cash Flow from Operating Activities
 Net Profit / (Loss) before Tax  (75,40,710)  (11,51,276)
 Adjustments for :-

 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  1,25,962  1,41,903
 Dividend  (59)  (89)
 Fair Valuation of Investment  (2,191)  2,03,295
 Investemnt W/off  6,16,642  -
 Provision for Impariment  38,56,217
 Finance Costs  19,399  42,933

 Operating profit before working capital changes  (29,24,740)  (7,63,234)
 Adjusted for

 Inventories  -  -
 Trade and Other Receivables  14,55,710  4,38,000
 Trade and Other Payables  6,45,604  4,68,597

 Cash Generated from Operations  (8,23,426)  1,43,363
 Direct Taxes (Paid) / Refund  -  -

 Net Cash from/(used in) Operating Activities  (8,23,426)  1,43,363
B  Cash Flow from Investing Activities

 Purchase of Fixed Assets and Capital Work in Progress  (65,608)  -
 Inter Corporate Deposit  10,35,616  1,75,00,000
 Interest Received  (31,61,522)  (10,35,616)

 Net Cash used in Investing Activities  (21,91,514)  1,64,64,384
C  Cash Flow from Financing Activities

 Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings  (2,50,649)  (2,27,114)
 Short Term Borrowings (Net)  32,80,316  (1,65,43,116)
 Interest Paid  (19,399)  (42,933)

 Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities  30,10,268  (1,68,13,163)
 Net (decrease) / increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (4,672)  (2,05,416)
 Cash & Cash Equivalents - Opening balance  15,96,574  18,01,990
 Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing balance  15,91,902  15,96,574

Notes:
(1) 	 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “indirect method” as set out in Ind AS 7 - Statement on Cash 

flows.
(2) 	 Figures in brackets indicate outflow.
(3) 	 Previous Year figures have been regrouped / rearranged / recasted wherever necessary to make them comparable with 

those of current year. 

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu
Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024

 A 	 Equity Share Capital	 Amount in Rs

Particulars  As at March 30, 2024  As at March 31, 2023
No of Shares  Amount  No of Shares  Amount

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  30,06,000  3,00,60,000  30,06,000  3,00,60,000

Add: Shares Issued during the year  -  -  -  -

Equity shares at the end of the year  30,06,000  3,00,60,000  30,06,000  3,00,60,000

B 	 Other Equity	 Amount in Rs

Particulars  General 
Reserve

 Stautory 
Reserve

 Retained 
Earning

 Total

As at April 01, 2023  45,000  1,33,13,912  (5,74,551)  1,27,84,361
 Transfer from retained earnings  -  -  -  -

Profit/(Loss) for the year  (75,92,723)  (75,92,723)

Other Comprehensive Income  -  -  -

As at March 31, 2024  45,000  1,33,13,912  (81,67,274)  51,91,638

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu

Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024
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NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024

Note - 1
STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a	 General Information
	 JPT Securities Limited is a Public Company Listed with BSE and domiciled in India and incorporated under the Provisions 

of Companies Act, 1956. It is registered as a Non banking Financial Company (“NBFC”) with the Reserve Bank of India. 
The registered office of the company is located at SKIL House, 209, Bank Street Cross Lane, Fort Mumbai-400023. The 
Company is engaged in the business of providing Loans.

b	 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:
	 These financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) notified under 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, on the accrual basis . The Company has prepared its Financial 
Statements in accordance with Indian GAAP, including accounting standards (AS) notified under the Companies (Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended), which is considered as “Previous GAAP”.

	 The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 th May , 2024
c	 Functional and Presentation Currency:
	 The Financial Statements are presented in indian rupees which is the functional currency for the Company.
d	 Use of Estimates:
	 The preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with Ind - AS requires use of estimates and assumptions for some 

items, which might have an effect on their recognition and measurement in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and 
Loss. The actual amounts realised may differ from these estimates. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the management becomes 
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Differences between the actual results and estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes 
to the Financial Statements.

	 Estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:
i.	 Determination of the estimated useful life of tangible assets and the assessment as to which components of the cost 

may be capitalized. Useful life of tangible assets is based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 
2013. In cases, where the useful life is different from that prescribed in Schedule II, it is based on technical advice, 
taking into account the nature of the asset, estimated usage and operating conditions of the asset, past history of 
replacement and maintenance support. Assumptions also need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an 
asset may be capitalised and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalised.

ii.	 Recognition of deferred tax assets
	 A deferred tax asset is recognised for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 

taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. The management 
assumes that taxable profits will be available while recognising deferred tax assets.

iii.	 Recognition and measurement of other provisions
	 The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow 

of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of 
resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figure included in other provisions.

iv.	 Discounting of long-term financial liabilities
	 All financial liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition. In case of financial liabilities, which 

are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost, interest is accrued using the effective interest method.
f	 Current Versus Non Current Classification:

i.	 The assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet are based on current/ non - current classification. An asset as 
current when it is:
1	 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
2	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading
3	 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
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4	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period
	 All other assets are classified as non-current.
ii	 A liability is current when it is:

1	 Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
2	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading
3	 Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4	 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting 

period
	 All other liabilities are treated as non - current.
	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

g	 Significant Accounting Policies:
I	 Property, Plant and Equipments:

i.	 All other property, plant and equipments have been carried at value in accordance with the previous GAAP.
ii.	 Property, plant and equipments are stated at cost net of cenvat / value added tax less accumulated depreciation 

and impairment loss, if any. All costs, including finance costs incurred up to the date the asset is ready for its 
intended use.

II	 Depreciation:
i.	 Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets is provided on the Straight Line Method over the useful life of assets 

prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The Management believes that the useful lives 
prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 best represents the period over which management 
expects to use assets.

ii.	 In respect of additions/extensions forming an integral part of existing assets, depreciation has been provided over 
residual life of the respective assets. Significant addittion which are required to be replaced/performed at regular 
interval are depreciated over the useful life of their specific life.

III	 Revenue Recognition:
i	 Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis.
ii	 Dividend is considered when the right to receive is established.

IV	 Financial Instruments:
	 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity.
	 Financial Assets

i	 Classification
	 The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 

comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the 
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

ii	 Initial recognition and measurement
	 All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 

value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
iii	 Financial Assets measured at amortised cost:
	 Financial assets are measured at amortised cost when asset is held within a business model, whose objective 

is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.Such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

iv	 Financial Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):
	 Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair 

value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income.
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v	 Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
	 Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value with all 

changes recognised in profit or loss.
vi	 Investment in Subsidiary and Associates:
	 Investment in equity instruments of Subsidiaries and Associates are measured at cost. Provision for Impairment 

loss on such investment is made only when there is a diminution in value of the investment which is other than 
temporary.

vii	 Investment in Equity Instruments:
	 Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. All other equity instruments are 

classified as FVTOCI. Fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other 
Comprehensive Income. There is no recycling of the amounts from other comprehensive income to profit or loss.

viii	 Investment in Debt Instruments:
	 A debt instrument is measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the 

criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included 
with in the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

ix	 Derecognition of Financial Assets
	 A financial asset is primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or 

the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.
x	 Impairment of Financial Assets
	 In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 

recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instrument and trade receivables.
Financial Liabilities
i	 Classification
	 The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for 

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including derivatives that are liabilities, 
shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

ii	 Initial recognition and measurement
	 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, 

net of directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and 
borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

iii	 Subsequent measurement
	 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 

liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are 
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This 
category also includes derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in 
hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held 
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

iv	 Loans and Borrowings
	 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective 

Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

v	 Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
	 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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V	 Provision for Current and Deferred Tax:
	 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to 

the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive 
income.
i.	 Current tax
	 Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and 

any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of the previous years. It is measured using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

	 Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
>	 has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
>	 intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

ii.	 Deferred Tax
	 Deferred tax is recognized for the future tax consequences of deductable temporary differences between the 

carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases at the reporting date, using the tax rate 
and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted as on reporting date. Deferred tax assets are recognized to 
the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and credits can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
>	 entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
>	 deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 

authority.
VI	 Impairment of Assets:
	 At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any property, plant and 

equipment and intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. If any such impairment exists the recoverable 
amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 
to which the asset belongs.

VII	 Provision for Doubtful Debts and Loans and Advances:
	 Provision is made in the accounts for doubtful debts, loans and advances in cases where the management considers 

the debts, loans and advances to be doubtful of recovery.
VIII	 Provision, Contigent Liabilites and Contigent Assets:
	 A provision is recognized if as a result of a past event the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that 

can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. 
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised 
but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when 
economic inflow is probable.

IX	 Details of Shareholding of Promoters as on 31.3.2024

S. No. Promoter Name No.of Share % of Total Shares % Change during the year
1 Awaita Properties Pvt. Ltd. 1806350  60.09 0

Total 1806350  60.09 0
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X	 Details of Trade Payables
	 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31.03.2024

S. No. Particulars Less then 1 
Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More then 3 
Years

Total

1 MSME * 0 0 0 0 0
2 Others 0 0 0 0 0
3 Disputed dues-MSME 0 0 0 0 0
4 Disputed dues-Others 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0
	 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31.03.2023

S. No. Particulars Less then 1 
Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More then 3 
Years

Total

1 MSME * 0 0 0 0 0
2 Others 0 0 0 0 0
3 Disputed dues-MSME 0 0 0 0 0
4 Disputed dues-Others 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0
	 *There are no amounts payable to small-scale industrial undertaking as at the balance sheet date. This disclosure is 

basedon the information available with the Company. The Company has not received any intimation from its vendors 
regarding their status under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if 
any, required under the said Act have not been made.

XI	 Details of Trade Receivables
	 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31.03.2024

S. 
No.

Particulars Less then 
6 Months

6 months 
-1 Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More then 3 
Years

Total

1 Undisputed Trade receivables 
- considered good

0 0 0 0 0 0

2 Undisputed Trade receivables 
- considered doubtful

0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

0 0 0 0 0 0

4 Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered doubtful

0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0
	 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as on 31.03.2023

S. 
No.

Particulars Less then 
6 Months

6 months 
-1 Year

1-2 years 2-3 years More then 3 
Years

Total

1 Undisputed Trade receivables 
- considered good

0 0 0 0 0 0

2 Undisputed Trade receivables 
- considered doubtful

0 0 0 0 0 0

3 Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered good

0 0 0 0 0 0

4 Disputed Trade receivables - 
considered doubtful

0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0
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XII	 Details of title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Compamy:
	 The Company do not have the immovable property whose title deeds are not held in the name of the Compamy as on 

31.03.2024. (Previous Year 31.03.2023: Nil).
XIII	 Detials of Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) as on 31.03.2024
	 The Company do not have Capital Work in Progress as on 31.03.2024. (Previous Year 31.03.2023: Nil)
XIV	 Detials of Intangible assets under development as on 31.03.2024:
	 The Company do not have Intangible assets under development in Progress as on 31.03.2024. (Previous Year 

31.03.2023: Nil)
XV	 Details of Benami Property as on 31.03.2024:
	 Company do not have any Benami Property as on 31.03.2024.(previous Year 31.03.2023:NIL)
XVI	 Details of Surrender Income as on 31.03.2024:
	 The Company do not have any transaction not recoreded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 

disclosed as income during the year in tax assessments under the income tax Act,1961 ( Such as Search or survey or 
any other relevant provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961). as on 31.03.2024. ( Previous Year 31.03.2023 : Nil)

XVI	 Ratio Anaalysis

S. No. Particulars as on 31.03.2024 as on 31.03.2023
1 Current Ratio  8.86  17.11
2 Debt- Equity Ratio NA NA
3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio NA NA
4 Return on Equity Ratio  (0.22)  (0.03)
5 Inventory turnover Ratio NA NA
6 Trade Receivables turnover Ratio NA NA
7 Trade payables turnover Ratio NA NA
8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio  0.12  0.11
9 Net profit Ratio  (1.80)  (0.25)

10 Return on Capital employed  (0.22)  (0.03)
11 Return on investment  (2.61)  (0.16)
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NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024

 Amount in Rs
Particulars  As at 

March 30, 2024
 As at 

March 31, 2023
Note 2
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALANTS
Balances with Banks
- In Current Accounts  15,89,842  15,94,514
Cash on Hand  2,060  2,060

 Total  15,91,902  15,96,574
Note 3
INVESTMENT
Long-term Non-Trade Investments
Unquoted: Fully Paid up
In Equity Shares of Associate Company
JPT Share Services Pvt. Ltd  67,36,895  67,89,171
760,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
(P.Y. 760,000 Equity Shares)
Quoted: Fully Paid up
In Equity Shares of other Companies
Neha International Ltd  -  1,01,267
NIL (1,40,649) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
A2Z Infra Engineering Ltd  -  5,15,375
NIL (P.Y. 77,500) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Current Investment at FVTPL
In Mutual Funds : Unquoted
HDFC Cash Management Plan  32,946  30,755

 Total  67,69,841  74,36,568
Less : Provision for Impairment  38,56,217  -

 29,13,624  74,36,568
Note 4
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Unsecured & considered good)
Mat Credit entitlement  17,08,000  17,08,000
Dividend declared but not received  148  89
Interest Corporate Depoits  6,00,00,000  6,10,35,616
Interest Receivable  31,61,522  -
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind for value to
- 	 Related Parties  22,34,739  22,34,739
- 	 Others  52,400  15,08,110

 Total  6,71,56,809  6,64,86,554
Note 5
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Particulars Gross Block Depreciation and Amortisation Net Block
As at

1-Apr-23
Additions 

during
the year

Deductions/
Adjustments

As at
31-Mar-24

Upto
31-Mar-23

For the
year

 Deductions /
 Adjustments

Upto
31-Mar-24

As at
31-Mar-24

As at
31-Mar-23

Tangible Assets
Computer  65,608.00  -  65,608  -  28,382  -  28,382  37,226  -
Vechicles  12,60,669  -  -  12,60,669  9,48,256  97,580  -  10,45,836  2,14,833  3,12,413
Total  12,60,669  65,608  -  13,26,277  9,48,256  1,25,962  -  10,74,218  2,52,059  3,12,413
Previous Year  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -
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NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024

5.1 In accordance with the Ind-AS 36 on “Impairment of Assets”, the Management during the year carried out an exercise of 
identifying the assets that may have been impaired in respect of each cash generating unit. On the basis of this review carried 
out by the Management, there was no impairment loss on Fixed Assets during the year. 

 Amount in Rs
Particulars  As at 

March 30, 2024
 As at 

March 31, 2023
Note 6
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Deferred Tax Assets on Property, Plant and equipments  90,135  89,872

 Total  90,135  89,872
Note 7
BORROWINGS
Long Term Secured Loan
Vehicle Loan  67,363  3,18,012
Short Term unsecured Loan
 From Holding Company  55,78,812  22,98,496

Total  56,46,175  26,16,508
7.1 Vehicles loan is secured against specific vehicle financed
7.2 Vehicle loan is fully repayable by June 2024.
7.3 Maturity of Vehicle loan; 2023-24: Rs 250649.; 2024-25: Rs 66459.

Note 8
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITES
Statutory Dues  52,042  49,477
Other Payables  23,91,886  17,48,847

Total  24,43,928  17,98,324
Note 9
CURRENT TAX
Provisions for Income Tax (Net)  2,85,12,788  2,85,12,788

Total  2,85,12,788  2,85,12,788
Note 10
LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Contingent provision against standard assets  1,50,000  1,50,000

Total  1,50,000  1,50,000
Note 11
SHARE CAPITAL
Equity Shares
Authorised
4,000,000 (4,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each  4,00,00,000  4,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid up
30,06,000 (30,06,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (Fully Paid-up)  3,00,60,000  3,00,60,000

Total  3,00,60,000  3,00,60,000

(a) 	 Reconciliation of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars  As at March 30, 2024  As at March 31, 2023
 No of Shares  Amount  No of Shares  Amount

Equity shares at the beginning of the year  30,06,000.00  3,00,60,000  30,06,000  3,00,60,000
Add: Shares Issued during the year  -  -  -  -
Equity shares at the end of the year  30,06,000.00  3,00,60,000  30,06,000  3,00,60,000



64

30th Annual Report
NOTES ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR MARCH 31, 2024

(b) 	 Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares in the Company

Shares held by  No. of Shares  % Holding  No. of Shares  % Holding
Awaita Properties Pvt. Ltd.  18,06,350 60.09  18,06,350 60.09

(c) 	 Terms and Rights attached to Equity Shares
	 The Company has only one class of Equity Share having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one 

vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the company, the equity share holders will be entitled to receive any of the 
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportionate to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 Amount in Rs
Particulars  As at 

March 30, 2024
 As at 

March 31, 2023
Note 12
Other Equity
General Reserve  45,000  45,000
Stautory Reserve  1,33,13,912  1,33,13,912
Retained Earning
-  	 Balance at beginning of the year  (5,74,551)  6,29,273
-  	 Transfer from retained earnings  -  -
-  	 Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year  (75,92,723)  (12,03,824)

 (81,67,274)  (5,74,551)
-  	 Balance at closing of the year

 Total  51,91,638  1,27,84,361

 Amount in Rs
Particulars  For the period ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Note 13
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Interest Income From ICD  42,08,645  47,34,381

 Total  42,08,645  47,34,381
Note 14
OTHER INCOME
Fair Valuation of Current Investment  -  -
Dividend  59  89
Sundry Balance w/back  -  -
Contingent Provision against Standard assets  -  43,750

 Total  59  43,839
Note 15
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Salaries, Wages and Allowances  15,39,600  16,09,292

 Total  15,39,600  16,09,292
Note 16
FINANCE COST
Finance Charges for Car Loan  19,399  42,933

 Total  19,399  42,933
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 Amount in Rs
Particulars  For the period ended 

March 31, 2024
 For the year ended 

March 31, 2023
Note 17
OTHER EXPENSES
Advertisement  54,096  37,464
Bank charges  12,475  9,254
Payment to Auditors  2,80,250  1,77,000
Business Promotion Expenses  1,500  -
Car Repair Expenses  -  28,800
Demat Charges  4,395  10,563
Fee, Taxes & Legal charges  49,934  34,323
Electricity Expenses  6,11,353  5,19,836
Fuel Expenses  3,58,989  3,62,256
Fair Valuation of Current Investment  (2,191)  2,03,295
House Keeping Expenses  1,84,729  1,94,250
Insurance - Car  15,165  -
Investment Written off  6,16,642  -
Other Administrative Expenses  67,207  51,642
Postage & Courier Charges  -  22,374
Printing & Stationary  72,225  46,885
Professional Fees  2,12,463  1,59,905
ROC Filing Fees  6,110  36,660
Sitting Fees to Directors  94,400  94,400
Rent Expenses  16,20,000  17,10,000
Security Services  -  2,03,384
Sundry Balance Written off  14,96,110  -
Telephone Expenses  60,644  64,237
Travelling & Conveyance  3,91,740  1,68,840

 Total  62,08,236  41,35,368
Note 18
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
There are no contingent liabilitites during the year.
Note 19
In the opinion of the management, Current Assets, Loans and Advances are of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary course 
of business.
Note 20
SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment Information : The Company is engaged in the business of providing Loans. All other activities of the Company are 
related to the main business. As such there are no separate reportable segments, as per the Ind-AS 108 on Operating Segment
Note 21
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
a)	 List of Related parties

i) 	 Holding Company
 	 Awaita Properties Pvt. Ltd
ii) 	 Assocites Company
 	 JPT Share Services Pvt. Ltd.
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iii) 	 Key Management Personnel
 	 Arun Govinda Sahu ,Chief Financial Officer
 	 Chintan Chheda ,WTD ( W.E.F Nov. 13,2020)

b)	 Terms and Conditions of transactions with related parties
	 The Transactions from related parties are made on arm’s length price. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured 

and interest have been accounted on market rate except the advances which is merely reimbursment of expenses. This 
assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market 
in which the related party operates.

c)	 Details of transactions with related parties
1	 With Associate Company - JPT Shares Services Private Limited	  Amount in aRs

Nature of Transactions  2023-24  2022-23
Advances
Opening Balance  22,34,739  26,84,739
Paid during the year  -  (4,50,000)
Closing Balance  22,34,739  22,34,739
Investment in Equity Shares  76,00,000  76,00,000
Short Term Borrowing
Opening Balance  22,98,496  1,88,41,612
Received during the year  54,06,516  52,67,884
Returned during the year  21,26,200  2,18,11,000
Closing Balance  55,78,812  22,98,496
Key Managerial Personnel
Salary of Chief Financial Officer  11,40,000  11,40,000
Salary of Manager  -  -
Director Remuneratiom  -  -
Salary of Company Secretary  -  38,000

Note - 22
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES:
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose 
of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The 
Company’s principal financial assets include Investment, loans and advances, trade and other receivables, and cash and bank 
balances that derive directly from its operations.
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the 
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management advises on financial decision and the appropriate financial risk 
governance framework for the Company.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and 
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOCI investments and 
derivative financial instruments.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s 
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to 
a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and advances to 
suppliers) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions 
and other financial instruments.
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Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control 
relating to customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment analysis 
is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients.
Financial instruments and cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance 
with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved authorities. Credit limits of all authorities 
are reviewed by the Management on regular basis.
Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, 
Letter of Credit and working capital limits.
Note - 23
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT:
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other 
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is 
to maximise the shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the 
requirements of the financial covenants. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total 
capital plus net debt.
In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets 
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. There have 
been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current year.
Note - 24
EARNING PER SHARE:

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax available for Equity Shareholders (in Rs.)  (75,92,723)  (12,03,824)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each outstanding during the year 3006000  30,06,000
Basic/Diluted Earning Per Share (in Rs.)  (2.53)  (0.40)

Note - 25
Considering the current business scenario globally, on-going litigation, liquidity tightness in the market , the Company has 
undertaken Provision for Impairment of its Assets including Investment / receivables on a conservative basis which includes 
Impairmrnt on Investemnt in Subsideries and Associates, Advance to Parties and Associates, Deposit aggregating to 
Rs.38,56,217/-
Note - 26
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/rearranged/reclassified wherever necessary.

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu
Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024
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Form AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part B Associates

Statement pursuant to Section129(3)of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associates JPT Shares Services 
Private Limited

1.	 Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31/03/2024
2.   	 Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or acquired. 28/02/2018
3.  	 Shares of Associate or Joint Ventures held by the company on the year end. 31st March, 2024
	 No. 7,60,000
	 Amount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture 76,00,000
	 Extent of Holding (in percentage) 43.18%
4.	 Description of how there is significant influence Note-1
5. 	 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet 64,19,343
6. 	 Profit or Loss for the year  

i. 	 Considered in Consolidation (52,276)
ii. 	 Not Considered in Consolidation             (68,789)

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For BHARAT SHAH & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants Rakesh Bajaj Chintan Chheda
Firm Reg. No.101249W Director Director

DIN : : 02894631 DIN : 08098371

BHARAT A. SHAH 
PROPRIETOR 
Membership No. 32281 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 29, 2024
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Disclosures of details as required by Revised Para 13 of Non Baning Financial Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve 
Bank) Directions, 2007, earlier Para 9BB of Non Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 1998.
Liabilities Side 	 Rs. In Lakhs

Amount 
Outstanding

Amount 
Overdue

1 Loans and Advances availed by the NBFCs inclusive of Interest accrued thereon 
but not paid

0.00 0.00

a. 	 Debentures 0.00 0.00
	 Secured 0.00 0.00
	 Unsecured (other than falling within the meaning of Public Deposits) 0.00 0.00
b. 	 Deferred Credits 0.00 0.00
c. 	 Term Loans 0.00 0.00
d. 	 Inter-corporate loans and borrowing 0.00 0.00
e. 	 Commercial Paper 0.00 0.00
f. 	 Other loans 56.46 0.00
Total 56.46 0.00

Asset Side
Amount 

Outstanding
2 Break up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables (other than those included in [4] below):

a. 	 Secured 0.00
b. 	 Unsecured 671.57
Total 671.57

3 Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets counting towards AFC activities
(i) 	 Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

a. 	 Financial Lease 0.00
b. 	 Operating Lease 0.00

(ii) 	 Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
a. 	 Assets on hire 0.00
b. 	 Repossessed Assets 0.00

(iii) 	 Other loans counting towards AFC activities:
a. 	 Loans where assets have been repossessed 0.00
b. 	 Loans other than (a) above 0.00

Total 0.00

4 Break-up of Investments:
Current Investments:
1. 	 Quoted:

(i) 	 Shares:
a. 	 Equity 0.33
b. 	 Preference 0.00

(ii) 	 Debentures and Bonds 0.00
(iii) 	 Units of Mutual Funds 0.00
(iv) 	 Government Securities 0.00
(v) 	 Others 0.00

Total 0.33
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Amount 

Outstanding

2. 	 Unquoted:
(i) 	 Shares:

a. 	 Equity 0.00
b. 	 Preference 0.00

(ii) 	 Debentures and Bonds 0.00
(iii) 	 Units of Mutual Funds 0.00
(iv) 	 Government Securities 0.00
(v) 	 Others 0.00

Total 0.00

Long Term Investments:
1. 	 Quoted:

(i) 	 Shares:
a. 	 Equity 0.00
b. 	 Preference 0.00

(ii) 	 Debentures and Bonds 0.00
(iii) 	 Units of Mutual Funds 0.00
(iv) 	 Government Securities 0.00
(v) 	 Others 0.00

Total 0.00

2. 	 Unquoted:
(i) 	 Shares:

a. 	 Equity  -
b. 	 Preference 0.00

(ii) 	 Debentures and Bonds 0.00
(iii) 	 Units of Mutual Funds 0.00
(iv) 	 Government Securities 0.00
(v) 	 Others 0.00

Total 0.00

5 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above:
Category Amount net of provisions

 Secured Unsecured Total
1. 	 Related Parties

a. 	 Subsidiaries 0.00 0.00 0.00
b. 	 Companies in the same group 0.00 22.35 22.35
c. 	 Other related parties 0.00 0.00 0.00

2. 	 Other than related parties 0.00 649.22 649.22
Total 0.00 671.57 671.57
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6 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and 

long term) in shares and securites (both quoted and unquoted):
Market Value / 

Break up of fair 
value or NAV

Book Value 
(Net of Provisions)

Category
1. 	 Related Parties

a. 	 Subsidiaries 0.00 0.00
b. 	 Companies in the same group 76.00 76.00
c. 	 Other related parties 0.00 0.00

2. 	 Other than related parties 0.00 0.00
Total 76.00 76.00

7 Other Information Amount
(i) Gross Non-performing Assets

a. 	 Related parties 0.00
b. 	 Other than related parties 0.00

(ii) Net Non-performing Assets
a. 	 Related parties 0.00
b. 	 Other than related parties 0.00

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt 0.00

For JMT & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.0104167W Chintan Chheda Rakesh Bajaj

Director Director
DIN : 08098371 DIN :02894631

Sanjay Pichholia
Partner Arun Sahu

Membership No. 122651 Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 29-05-2024
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
30th Annual General Meeting – Monday, September 30, 2024

Registered Folio No./ DP ID No./ Client ID No.
Name and address of the Member(s)

Number of Shares held    
I certify that I am a member of the Company.
I hereby record my presence at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company being held on Monday, September 30, 2024 
at 14:50 hours at Kilachand Conference Room, IMC Bldg., IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai- 400020.

________________________
Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please fill attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.
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PROXY FORM
 [Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

30th Annual General Meeting – Monday, September 30, 2024
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Registered Address
Email ID
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Folio No
*Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form.
I/We, being the Member (s) of ……………………………………………………………………shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
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	 .....................................................................................................................................................................................…............................…..… 
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as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30th Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on 
Monday, September 30, 2024 at 14:50 hours at Kilachand Conference Room, IMC Bldg., IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai- 400020 and at 
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
Sr. No. RESOLUTIONS Optional*
Ordinary Business For Against Abstain
1. Ordinary Resolution for adoption of the Audited Financial Statements (including the Consolidated Financial 

Statements) of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board 
of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. Ordinary Resolution for appointment of a Director in place of Mr. Chintan Chheda (DIN: 08098371), who retires 
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Ordinary Resolution for Re-appointment of Mr. Chintan Chheda as Whole Time Director of the Company. 
4. Ordinary Resolution for Appointment of Mrs. Heeral Mandani as an Independent Woman Director of the Company.
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Note:
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blank against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she think appropriate. 
5.	 Please complete all details including detail of member(s) in above box before submission 
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